
NOTE:  The Council will take a 5-minute recess at 8:00 pm. 

       HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL  

 HAMPDEN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 AGENDA 

MONDAY      MARCH 5TH,  2018  7:00 P.M. 

6:30 p.m. – Finance & Administration Committee 

A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

B. CONSENT AGENDA

1. SIGNATURES

2. SECRETARY’S REPORTS

a. February 5th, 2018
b. February 20th, 2018

3. COMMUNUNICATIONS

4. REPORTS

a. Finance Committee Minutes – February 5th, 2018
b. Infrastructure Committee Minutes –  January 29th, 2018
c. Planning & Development Committee Minutes –  February 14th, 2018
d. Services Committee Minutes – January 8th, 2018

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS

D. POLICY AGENDA

1. NEWS, PRESENTATIONS & AWARDS

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Consideration of the proposed Ordinance authorizing the appropriation 
and borrowing of funds to finance the repair and replacement of 
portions of Hampden’s Sewer Collection System – referred by Council 
on February 20th, 2018

b. Consideration of the proposed Coldbrook Corners TIF (Tax Increment 
Financing) Development Program and Credit Enhancement 
Agreement
– referred by Council on March 5, 2018 



MONDAY                           MARCH 5TH,  2018                                       7:00 P.M. 
 

2 

3. NOMINATIONS – APPOINTMENTS – ELECTIONS 
 
 

4. OLD BUSINESS  
 

       
5. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Discussion of Councilor use of Town issued iPads – request of Mayor 

McPike 
 

b. Request for authorization to amend the FY18 Sewer Budget to 
increase budgeted expenses by $73,500 to authorize the expenditure 
of revenues projected in FY18, but not included in the expense budget, 
for the purpose of supporting engineering services for sewer capital 
projects and support for creating a sewer Fiscal Sustainability Plan and 
CSO Master Plan – referral from Infrastructure Committee & Finance 
and Administration Committee  
 

c. Request for authorization to amend the 60-79 revenue line in the FY18 
budget to reflect anticipated collection of $53,305 in unbudgeted sewer 
connection fees and to increase budgeted expenses by $53,305 to 
authorize the expenditure of FY18 projected revenues, but not included 
in the expense budget, for the purpose of supporting mitigation of 
anticipated Fiberight/Coastal flow impacts on existing infrastructure, 
and engineering services for other sewer projects – referral from 
Infrastructure Committee and Finance & Administration Committee 
 

d. Request for the disposition of a publicly held open space area within 
the Hampden Business and Commerce Park, consisting of 2.62 acres 
located at the end of the easterly cul-de-sac at the rear of the park, 
which will be isolated due to proposed reconfiguration of lots 33 and 34 
and a publicly held (future use) right-of-way, thereby leaving the open 
space area with limited public benefit and no public access; for the 
purpose of effectuating business development. The open space area is 
to be combined with lot 34 and therefore will be subject to the Option 
Agreement between the Town of Hampden and Sargent Corporation – 
referral from Planning & Development Committee  
 

e. Agreement with Maine Department of Transportation for the issuance 
of a construction overlimit permit to allow overweight vehicles to travel 
on posted Municipal roads during construction projects numbered 
02326.00 and 23318.00 
 

f. Discussion on potentially adding a second School Resource Officer – 
requested by Councilor Sirois 

 
        



MONDAY                           MARCH 5TH,  2018                                       7:00 P.M. 
 

3 

E. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

 
F. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 

G. CLERK’S COMMENTS 
 

 
H. COUNCILORS’ COMMENTS 

 
 
I. ADJOURNMENT  



B-2-a













B-2-b













B-4-a









INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, January 29, 2017 

MINUTES 

Attending: 
Mayor Ivan McPike   DPW Director Sean Currier 
Councilor Mark Cormier, Chairman Town Manager Angus Jennings  
Councilor Dennis Marble  Kyle Corbeil, Woodard & Curran 
Councilor Terry McAvoy Roland Fogg, Resident 
Councilor David Ryder  
Councilor Stephen Wilde  

Chairman Cormier called the meeting to order at 6 PM. 

1. MINUTES

November 27, 2017 Meeting – Motion by Councilor Marble seconded by

Councilor McAvoy to approve the minutes as written. Motion carried 6-0.

Item 5. a. was taken up first due to a member of the public in attendance 

with an interest in the item. 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS:

a. Correspondence from Roland Fogg regarding salt v. sand for

roads maintenance.

Roland Fogg, of Kennebec Road had concerns over the sand vs salt

being used on his stretch of road.  Mr. Fogg has lived on the Kennebec

Road for 68 years, it’s gotten worse over time. He stated that once

applied, the sand turns to mud, and once dry, turns into a dust storm.

Director Currier stated that the price per ton for salt is $60.00, verses

$400.00 per mile a year for sand/salt mix. Director Currier pointed out that

it would cost the Town $33,000.00 to use salt in just Mr. Fogg’s portion of

the road.

Chairman Cormier asked if there was an environmental assessment done.

Councilor Ryder stated no harm in running the grades.

Director Currier stated he could drop a sample off to SW Cole, if the

Committee wishes.

2. OLD BUSINESS

a. Update on Hampden Capital Program work underway –

Manager Jennings presented draft of the Capital Program.  There was

positive feedback from committee.

B-4-b



3. NEW BUSINESS  

a. Meeting with consultant engineer to review findings to date from 

CCTV (closed circuit TV) review of sewer infrastructure, and 

recommended capital projects to coincide with MDOT road 

reconstruction project. 

Kyle Corbeil P.E., with Woodard & Curran presented a large map 

showing CCTV area focused on upcoming project work.  Rte.1A 

corridor down as far as the Skehan Center and Western Avenue to 

Mayo Road were reconstruction in 1950’s, transitioning both gravity & 

force main, these pipes are in poor condition. 

 

Public Works Director Currier stated that if gravity section failed, 

pumps would continue to pump, under pressure. 

 

Mr. Corbeil discussed vitrified clay pipe, lots of cracks.  There is a lot of 

gravel in the line. 

Councilor Ryder stated it comes down to how much can the ratepayer 

absorb.  They get hit with sewer, water rates, and school tax increases.  

If we combined 1A to school would like to see how. Could take out 

Dewey Street for another day. 

 

Town Manager Jennings stated he can look at TIF eligibility until 

February 2020 to come up with possible funding.   

Mr. Corbeil stated the inspection company rates pipes and manholes 

for structural deficiencies. 

 

b. Correspondence from Hampden Water District regarding 
anticipated water rate increase – Manager Jennings gave an 
informational update on the meeting with FEMA, MEMA, and 
Penobscot County EMA.  He stated that he is hopeful that the Town 
will receive some federal money to help cover the windstorm cost. 

 

4. STAFF UPDATES – CSO Non- Compliance/discharge Incident Report 

regarding Souadabscook Pump Station filed with MDEP Jan 13, 2018 

 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Correspondence from Roland Fogg regarding salt 

v. sand for roads maintenance 

 

6. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS – Councilor McAvoy questioned 

whether at some point the Town will do RFP to contract out mowing. 

Town Manager Jennings stated yes. 

Councilor McAvoy would like copies of road lengths.  He questioned when  

Council will take time to evaluate relative costs of contracting out plowing 



and stated it should be on next agenda, along with reorganizing public 

works. 

 

Councilor Wilde asked whether Schoolhouse Lane is being looked at.  

 

Director Currier stated that improvements would again be proposed in the 

Capital Program as they have been in the past.  He would like to see a 

resolution to the issues on Schoolhouse Lane but it will require funding. 

 

Chairman Cormier stated that Schoolhouse Lane is very important to get 

repaired as it is affecting properties. 

Councilor Marble asked if the numbers for sewer would go to finance on 

February 20, 2018.  

Town Manager Jennings stated yes. 

Councilor Ryder stated that there was a plow truck on Patterson Road 

with plow up, should keep the plow down.   

Councilor Wilde stated he traveled to Houlton and noticed worse roads 

than Hampden. Hampden does better on in-town roads than they do in 

Houlton and commended the job the Public Works have been doing. 

 

7. ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:47 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Rosemary Bezanson, Public Works 



Attending: 

Chairman Ryder called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

Note, the meeting was started in Council Chambers and recessed to the conference room at 6:30 since the 
Planning Board had their regular meeting scheduled for 7:00. Agenda items were taken out of order. 

1. Minutes for the January 17, 2018 meeting – Motion to approve as submitted made by Councilor
Marble; second by Councilor McAvoy; carried 5/0/0.

2. Committee Applications: None

3. Updates:

a. MRC/Fiberight: CEO Block said construction on the building is continuing, no issues to
report this week.

b. Staff Report:
i. Handed out copies of the March issue of the Down East Magazine which includes

the advertorial we did with Bangor; the four page spread came out quite well.
ii. Planner Cullen showed the Doing Business section of the town’s website, noting

there are some corrections to be made yet but the result is a better illustration of
what Hampden has to offer than the previous material was.

iii. Planner Cullen led a discussion on the Shoreland Zoning Map; the main points
were that there appear to be inconsistencies between the current map and the
state guidelines, and the amount of work necessary to get our map into
compliance with the state mandated shoreland protection areas exceeds staff
resources to get it done in a timely manner.  The consensus of the committee was
to hire a consultant to do the necessary work to produce a new shoreland layer
that maps the areas mandated by the state.

Committee/Council Staff 
David Ryder - Chair Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
Dennis Marble Myles Block, Code Enforcement Officer 
Terry McAvoy Karen Cullen, Town Planner 
Mark Cormier 
Ivan McPike Public 
Stephen Wilde Jim Kiser 

Town of Hampden 

Planning and Development Committee 

Wednesday February 14, 2018, 6:00 pm 

Municipal Building Council Chambers 

Minutes

B-4-c



Planning & Development Committee 
  Minutes of 2/14/2018 Meeting 
  Page 2 of 3 
 

iv. Jim Kiser was present to discuss the potential for having a map amendment done 
for a couple of properties where he believes the current map is incorrect. Planner 
Cullen noted our current ordinance has no provisions for how to process such 
requests, it simply states the ordinance (and map) can be amended by majority 
vote of the Town Council, and within 30 days must be submitted to DEP for review 
and approval. After discussion, Chairman Ryder said he would sponsor a map 
amendment if the applicant (Jim Kiser in this case) provided all the information to 
Planner Cullen and CEO Block for review, and possible third party review too. 
Councilor McAvoy asked what happens if the two consultant recommendations are 
different.  

   
4. Old Business:   

c.  Hampden Business Park Covenants. Manager Jennings led a discussion to review the draft 
amendments to the covenants as prepared by consultant Noel Musson. After discussion the 
following additional changes were recommended: 

• Recital 2: delete the last sentence of the second paragraph regarding where the 
design review provisions apply; 

• Section 4.8, parking areas, loading areas, and driveways: delete the section in its 
entirety since they are adequately covered in the zoning ordinance; 

• Section 4.9, storage areas: delete the section in its entirety since these provisions are 
adequately covered in the zoning ordinance amendments; 

• Section 4.10, lighting: delete the section in its entirety since these provisions are 
adequately covered in the zoning ordinance amendments. 

Motion by Mayor McPike to refer the proposed amendments to the Declaration of Covenants, 
Conditions, and Restrictions for the Hampden Business and Commerce Park to Town Council, 
second by Councilor McAvoy; carried 6/0/0.   

5. New Business: 

a. LD 1565, Bill to amend 30-A MRSA §5222 and §5224 regarding Tax Increment Financing 
eligibility.  Councilor Marble said his understanding is that this bill is dead, but if it had 
passed it would have been a real problem for Hampden.   

6. Zoning Considerations/Discussion:  
a. Planner Cullen gave a presentation of the proposed use table and briefly mentioned 

other proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance that have resulted from the work on 
the use table. She noted the use table replaces the lists in the current Article 3 which 
organizes the districts in such a way that if someone wants to open a new business in town, 
they have a hard time figuring out where they can do it. The table format makes it very 
easy to see which districts each use is allowed in, as well as all the uses that are allowed 
in a particular district. She added that the dimensional table, which is being discussed by 
the Planning Board tonight, will also make it easy for people to focus their real estate 
search on properties that meet the requirements for the use they are planning to establish.  



Planning & Development Committee 
  Minutes of 2/14/2018 Meeting 
  Page 3 of 3 
 

b. Planner Cullen gave the quarterly report on adult use (recreational or retail) marijuana. 
She noted the activities done at the local level: prohibited retail sales and social clubs via 
zoning amendments which became effective Dec. 20, 2017; the proposed zoning 
amendments include cultivation, product manufacture, and testing as prohibited uses in the 
use table, with the intention of making further amendments to these three uses after the 
state completes their work; and Town Council has adopted an emergency moratorium on 
cultivation, product manufacture, and testing, which per the Town Charter is good for 60 
days but can be extended in 60 day increments until it is no longer needed because our 
zoning ordinance has been amended. Planner Cullen noted the activities at the state level: 
they have yet to amend the Act, they have not enacted an extension of their moratorium, 
and they are continuing work on the amendments to the Act in committee. She also noted 
the state is now looking at the medical marijuana laws and may amend those in an 
attempt to close some loopholes and level the playing field.  

 
7. Citizen Initiatives: None. 

8. Public Comments: None. 

9. Committee Member Comments: None. 

10. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 pm.   

Respectfully submitted by  
 Karen Cullen, Town Planner 



SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING

Monday, January 8, 2018

MINUTES

Attending:
Councilor Dennis Marble, Chair Shelley Abbott, Rec Director 
Mayor Ivan McPike  Sean Currier, DPW Director 
Councilor Terry McAvoy Steve Brown, Rec Committee 
Councilor Mark Cormier Jim Dyer, Rec Committee 
Councilor David Ryder Jane Jarvi, Rec Committee 
Councilor Stephen Wilde 
Town Manager Angus Jennings 

Chairman Marble called the meeting to order at 6 p.m.

1. MINUTES

a. December 11, 2017 – Motion by Councilor McAvoy seconded by Mayor
McPike to approve the meeting minutes. Approved 5-0.

2. COMMITTEE APPLICATIONS

a. David Barrett – Re-appointment to Library Board of Trustees – Motion
by Mayor McPike seconded by Councilor McAvoy to recommend Council
reappointment. Approved 5-0.

3. OLD BUSINESS

a. Review of draft Request for Qualifications to engage consultant for
engineering and (DEP and local) permitting for work on Lura Hoit
Pool and Municipal Building Site – Manager Jennings reported that
there is a draft RFP in the meeting packet, and that he is looking to verify
that this is the requested scope of work prior to issuing the RFP. Chairman
Marble asked if this needed to be referred to Council. Manager Jennings
said no, he could issue the RFP without Council or Committee
recommendation but, because he knows there is disagreement about how
best to proceed, he wants to ensure that there is a majority of Councilors
willing to fund the work prior to issuing the RFP so as not to waste
vendors’ time in preparing proposals.

Councilor Wilde asked for clarification about the scope and Manager
Jennings said it is to bring the full site build-out through DEP permitting.
Councilor Wilde noted the October 2017 Committee vote to proceed only
with permitting the parking expansion, and said that motion should be

B-4-d



 

 

rescinded or there will be two competing motions. There was discussion 
about the procedural requirements of rescinding a vote vs. reconsidering a 
vote. Councilor McAvoy said it seems like we keep voting until someone 
gets the result they want. Chairman Marble said he would not be opposed 
to proceeding only with Phase 1 but he thinks it would be more cost 
efficient to permit the whole site. 
 
Councilor Wilde said that, once permitted by DEP, work would need to 
proceed within 3 years, which could be extended to 7 years. He said if 
there is not money to build the site in that time we would be wasting 
money on permitting. He noted that there are other projects in town that 
are falling behind, such as Schoolhouse Lane, that he thinks have to come 
first. 
 
Chairman Marble noted that there is money set aside in reserve for 
permitting. Mayor McPike said it appears you think we’re trying to build 
fields. Councilor Wilde said why get permitting for fields if there is no 
interest to build. Councilor Ryder said we can’t bring in a logger to cut 
trees and build a field without DEP approval, and that all we’re looking for 
is a price on Phase 1. He noted that a price could be proposed and the 
Council could still decide not to proceed. 
 
Councilor Wilde said that if trees are cut it’ll be an eyesore and will create 
pressure to do something. He said he’s trying to do things the right way by 
looking at it in phases. 
 
Councilor McAvoy noted that the proposed price from Woodard & Curran 
to just permit and design the parking was high, so what makes us think the 
price will be less if we permit the whole site? Councilor Ryder said that 
small engineering firms didn’t put in for the first one because the scope 
was too broad.  
 
Chairman Marble invited comments on the draft RFP. Councilor Ryder 
asked why we’re seeking construction drawings? Manager Jennings said 
he included this just for the parking since that is the only piece that would 
be expected to proceed to construction initially, and that receiving that 
cost will ensure that the Council will not be surprised when the time comes 
that there are additional engineering costs after permitting is complete. He 
said he would not object to leaving this out of the RFP as long as people 
understand that these would be additional soft costs. Councilor Ryder said 
he is trying to get the community involved (such as through donated labor 
and materials) to save money. 
 
Jane Jarvi said that DEP permitting is needed for any future use of the 
site, and that we need to take the long view. If money has been 
appropriated for permitting, we should proceed with permitting. 



 

 

Jim Dyer said that it doesn’t cost money to invite firms to provide 
estimates. He said that progress on this effort has been incredibly slow 
and it seems like the Councilors are dragging their feet. 
 
Councilor Wilde said that the motion made in October (to permit parking 
only) was not ignoring the fields, but was because he didn’t see funds for 
fields within the 3 year DEP permit window. He said it was supposed to 
address parking and stormwater, while specifically taking into account 
potential future fields. 
 
Manager Jennings noted that the need to take into account potential future 
fields would have a cost impact, and that part of W&C’s proposed cost 
was to definitively establish the sub-surface depth of the pipeline so that 
could be taken into account in overall site design. He said this is one 
example of why he struggled with taking detail out of the RFP – since if 
this work, for instance, is valuable, it should be communicated to all 
potential bidders so no one is disadvantaged. 
 
Councilor Ryder said that if we get it permitted we’ve done our job, and 
that it’s up to a future Council to build it or not. 
 
Councilor McAvoy said he didn’t recall the Rec Director saying that we 
need more fields, and that the need has not been established. Director 
Abbott said that we can accommodate today’s programs, but the Rec 
programs are at their limit and cannot grow, whether because of increase 
in demand or future population growth. Manager Jennings said that the 
Rec Director is making the Councilors aware of constraints based on 
existing facilities. He said that whether the goal is to expand recreational 
programming or not is up to the Council, but that the Council must act 
based on complete information including understanding that, if there is no 
expansion, participation in current programs would need to be limited if 
there is increased demand. 
 
Councilor McAvoy said we should not be providing services for residents 
of other towns. Mayor McPike said that his neighbor’s kids currently go to 
Bangor to play soccer because there aren’t opportunities in their age 
group here. 
 
Jane Jarvi said that the Rec programming is not meeting the needs of 
Hampden residents, and that participation is limited by a lack of parking. 
There is no programming after Grade 5 in the Town of Hampden. There 
have been requests for additional programming that have been turned 
down because there are no facilities or parking. There is no adult soccer 
programming. Town residents place pressure on the Rec Department. 
 



 

 

Councilor Wilde said when he grew up he did rec programs at the high 
school, and asked why we can’t use the facilities across the street, noting 
that these are used by the travel soccer group. 
 
Chairman Marble said that the conversation was now extending beyond 
the scope of what is before the Committee, and said we should take action 
on the draft RFP.  
 
Mayor McPike said we budgeted the money, but Councilor Cormier said 
that doesn’t mean we need to spend the money.  
 
Mayor McPike made a motion, seconded by Councilor Ryder, to support 
issuance of the RFP. 
 
Councilor McAvoy said he would vote no because he thinks that full build 
of the site – with parking and fields everywhere – is right where we don’t 
need to be. Mayor McPike asked why that is the wrong place to be. A vote 
was taken and the vote was 3-3 with Councilors Cormier, McAvoy and 
Wilde opposed. The motion failed for lack of a majority. 
 
Jim Dyer said we just spent an hour debating a direction that was already 
set last month. Jane Jarvi said that the Council Rules don’t allow non 
Committee members to vote at the Committee level. Chairman Marble 
said he supports moving forward but doesn’t agree with doing so based on 
a procedural issue. He said the Council Rules should be looked at with the 
Town Manager and Town Clerk but Councilor McAvoy said he doesn’t see 
what the Town Manager or Town Clerk have to do with the Council Rules. 
 
Chairman Marble said that, for tonight, we’re done with this issue. 

 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Discussion of potential non-binding referendum regarding 
recreational fields and facilities; whether to propose, and if so when? 
– Chairman Marble said that the goal of this item is to talk about how we 
can determine how the public feels. Councilor McAvoy said this issue is 
nowhere near close to ready for public referendum, and that prior surveys 
have been completed and the prior Councils have ignored the results.  
 
Mayor McPike said he spoke to several residents and they all said that 
there are not enough fields in town. Councilor Ryder said that he’d like to 
see the survey that was done 3 years ago and Manager Jennings said the 
results of that and other surveys are all posted to the project website 
(www.hampdenmaine.gov/recplanning). There was discussion about how 
best to get a good response to either a survey or to voting. 
 

http://www.hampdenmaine.gov/recplanning


 

 

Mayor McPike said that there is another referendum coming up, regarding 
a turf field at RSU-22. Councilor Wilde said that field would cost $1-1.2M 
and that only $160k has been set aside. Mayor McPike said the lifespan of 
that field would be ten years, and wondered if we’d be paying to build a 
new field and also setting aside $80k/year to replace it when needed? 
Councilor McAvoy said that field was originally donated but now the 
expense to replace it is falling to taxpayers. 
 
Chairman Marble said that if we were to go to the ballot to get voter input 
he’d wait until November when there would be a higher turnout.  
 
Manager Jennings said he hadn’t given much consideration to a potential 
survey. Mayor McPike asked if a survey was done, and the response was 
overwhelmingly in favor of more fields, would that change any votes? 
Councilor McAvoy said his vote would not change, but Councilor Cormier 
said he is there to represent the people and it could affect his vote. 
Councilor McAvoy said it would depend entirely on the wording, and that 
any question would have to say what it would cost. He noted that he 
passed out about 700 position papers during the fall election and spoke 
with about 300 people who opposed more fields. 
 
Chairman Marble asked if the Town Manager could draft a question for a 
potential survey and Manager Jennings said that he could. 

 
5. PUBLIC AND STAFF COMMENTS – Mr. Dyer noted that Down East magazine 

had named Hampden its #1 town a couple of years ago, but he feels that it has 
gone downhill since then. He said he doesn’t see progress or a progressive town. 
Director Abbott said that it is disappointing that we are spinning our wheels. 
Manager Jennings updated the Committee regarding work to review current work 
plan and priorities and noted that he’s working to prepare information for review 
by Committee Chairs in anticipation of a Goals Setting session in February.  
 

6. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS – Councilor Cormier noted that his term 
will end at the end of 2018 and he invited interested citizens to consider running 
for the Council.  

 
 
There being no further business, there was a motion and second approved by 
unanimous consent and the meeting adjourned at 7:20 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted –  
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 



TO: Finance Committee and Town Council 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  February 16, 2018 

RE: Proposed Ordinance to authorize June sewer borrowing referendum 

Please find attached the proposed Ordinance language prepared in conjunction with our 
Bond Counsel Dan Pittman at Eaton Peabody. 

As you know, although we had general knowledge that needed sewer repairs would be 
identified upon analysis of the 2017 CCTV footage, specific information including 
estimated project costs became available very recently, and is still being refined.  The 
draft Ordinance is intended to include the highest potential borrowing authorization 
number (knowing it can be reduced in the public hearing, but not increased from what is 
advertised); we’ll get more information from Woodard & Curran on Tuesday as they 
continue to refine estimates to take into account complete costs associated with the 
newly identified projects,1 the Grist Mill Bridge,2 and the costs associated with relocated 
manholes and sewer lines that will be needed as a result of the MDOT reconstruction of 
Route 1A.3 This information will update W&C’s Jan. 26 memo, which is enclosed. 

Also, we are working to evaluate potential financing options, with particular focus on: 

- Maine Municipal Bond Bank. However, financing would not become available until next
spring so, even if we do pursue MMBB as the most advantageous lender, additional
short-term borrowing (or budgeting) would almost certainly be needed in order to get the
projects to the level of engineering needed to be ready for bidding and construction
when the time comes.

- State Revolving Fund (SRF) funding. This program can offer extremely favorable
borrowing terms, but in order to be eligible Hampden would be required to develop and
implement a Fiscal Sustainability Plan – which is basically a system-wide asset
management plan – among other eligibility requirements. We’re working to evaluate a)
whether this is practically feasible; and b) if doing so would be worth the effort.  The SRF
terms do tend to be extremely favorable, and my thinking is that this will be worth it – but
if we’re to actually get it done we’ll need to make a focused effort in the coming months.

Another fundamental financing question we’re continuing to examine is to what extent 
debt service would be borne by sewer rate payers v. property tax payers. 

Tuesday’s meeting will include a presentation of the latest information at that time. The 
public hearing will include a more comprehensive presentation, which will formally begin 
our efforts this spring to communicate broadly the need for this borrowing authorization.  

1 Jan. 29, 2018 Infrastructure Committee packet, beginning on page 7, linked here. 
2 June 26, 2017 Infrastructure Committee packet, beginning on page 6, linked here.  
3 Aug. 28, 2017 Infrastructure Committee packet, beginning on page 13, linked here. 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 
 

http://www.hampdenmaine.gov/vertical/sites/%7B1FCAF0C4-5C5E-476D-A92E-1BED5B1F9E05%7D/uploads/INFRASTRUCTURE_COMMITTEE_MEETING_PACKET_1-29-2018.pdf
http://www.hampdenmaine.gov/vertical/sites/%7B1FCAF0C4-5C5E-476D-A92E-1BED5B1F9E05%7D/uploads/INFRASTRUCTURE_COMMITTEE_MEETING_AGENDA_and_PACKET_6-26-2017.pdf
http://www.hampdenmaine.gov/vertical/sites/%7B1FCAF0C4-5C5E-476D-A92E-1BED5B1F9E05%7D/uploads/INFRASTRUCTURE_COMMITTEE_MEETING_AGENDA_and_PACKET_8-28-2017.pdf
townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-2-a



{EP - 02687967 – v2 }

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING APPROPRIATION AND BORROWING OF FUNDS TO 

FINANCE SEWER IMPROVEMENTS AND REPAIRS THROUGH THE ISSUANCE OF 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OR NOTES OF THE TOWN OF HAMPDEN, WHICH 

MAY BE CALLABLE, IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,424,000. 

The Town of Hampden hereby ordains as follows: 

Section 1.  That pursuant to Section 5772 of Title 30-A Maine Revised Statutes, as 

amended, the Charter of the Town and any other applicable authority under Maine law, the Town 

of Hampden is hereby authorized to borrow a principal amount not to exceed Two Million Four 

Hundred and Twenty-Four Thousand Dollars ($2,424,000), said amount to be payable over a 

period not to exceed thirty (30) years, less the term of any Note described below, at such interest 

rates and on such further terms and conditions as may be approved by the Treasurer and a 

majority of the Town Council, the proceeds of said loan to be appropriated and used to finance 

sewer repairs and improvements in the Town, including but not limited to on Main Road North 

from Mountain View Drive southerly to Western Avenue, replacement of sewer infrastructure in 

and proximate to the Grist Mill Bridge, on Main Road North between Western Avenue and the 

Weatherbee School, and on Western Avenue between Main Road North and Route 202, all as 

more particularly described in memoranda from Woodard and Curran to Sean Currier, Public 

Works Director of the Town dated January 5, 2017 and dated January 26, 2018 (the “Projects”).  

Said loan is to be evidenced by a General Obligation Bond or Bonds of the Town to be executed 

and delivered on behalf of the Town by the Town Treasurer and countersigned by a majority at 

least of the Town Council in a principal amount not to exceed $2,424,000 in the aggregate (the 

“Bond”).  The Bond may be subject to call for redemption as determined by the Town Treasurer 

and a majority of the Town Council. 

Section 2.  That in anticipation of the receipt of the Bond proceeds, pursuant to the 

Charter of the Town and Section 5772 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, 

and any other applicable authority under the laws of the State of Maine, the Town of Hampden is 

hereby authorized to borrow from a lending institution approved by the Town Treasurer and a 

majority at least of the Town Council a principal amount not to exceed Two Million Four 

Hundred and Twenty-Four Thousand Dollars ($2,424,000) and in evidence thereof to execute 

and deliver one or more General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes (each, a “Note”) of the 

Town for a period not to exceed one year and to bear interest at such rate and said Note to be 

subject to such further terms and conditions as the Town Treasurer and a majority at least of the 

Town Council shall approve, and said Note, together with interest thereon, to be a general 

obligation of the Town, and intended to be repaid from the proceeds of the Bond, said Note to be 

executed and delivered on behalf of the Town by the Town Treasurer and countersigned by a 

majority at least of the Town Council, and such Note may be refunded from time to time for a 

period not to exceed an aggregate of three years with proceeds to be used to provide temporary 

funds to accomplish the Project. 



{EP - 02687967 – v2 }

Section 3.  That the Town Manager, Mayor, or other officers designated by the Town 

Council be and each of them hereby is authorized to execute such documents and do all things 

necessary or convenient in order to issue the Bond or Note and to execute and deliver such loan 

applications as may be necessary or appropriate to such lender or lenders as they select.  The 

Treasurer, Mayor, or other officers designated by the Town Council are further authorized to 

execute any and all loan agreements, resolutions, certificates, returns and other documents as 

may be required by any such lender as may be selected by the Town Treasurer and approved by a 

majority at least of the Councilors, in such form as may be required by each such lender. 

Section 4.  That the Town Clerk shall distribute a copy of this ordinance to each Council 

member and the Town Manager, and shall file a reasonable number of copies of this ordinance in 

the office of the Town Clerk and shall post a copy of this ordinance together with a Notice of 

Public Hearing at the following public places: Municipal Building, Post Office, Dyer Library, 

and Hannaford, as well as such other places as may be directed by the Town Manager. 

Section 5.  That a Public Hearing be held at 7:00 p.m. in the Hampden Municipal 

Building in Hampden, Maine on March 5, 2018, for the purpose of taking testimony and 

comments from the public with respect to the proposed issuance of the Bond, and that notice of 

the public hearing be given by the Town Clerk by publishing a summary of this ordinance and a 

place where copies of the complete ordinance have been filed and times available for inspection 

in the Bangor Daily News on or before February 26, 2018, together with a notice setting forth the 

time and place for the public hearing, and for the consideration of the proposed ordinance by the 

Town Council at a meeting to be held March 5, 2018, immediately following the public hearing. 

Section 6.  That all actions heretofore taken by the Town Council of the Town of 

Hampden relating to the selling of the Town’s Bond and Note authorized hereby be and they 

hereby are ratified, approved and confirmed. 

Section 7.  That pursuant to the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 

amended, the Town designated the Bond and Note to be “qualified tax exempt obligations” of 

the Town. 

Section 8.  That the Town shall take any and all actions required under the Internal 

Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, to maintain the tax exempt status of the interest on the 

Notes and Bonds, and to maintain the status of the Bond and the Note as “qualified tax exempt 

obligations” of the Town; and that in connection with the Notes and Bonds, the Town Treasurer 

shall be authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the Town one or more such Arbitrage and 

Use of Proceeds Certificates in form approved by the Town’s bond counsel, and to covenant on 

behalf of the Town to file any information report and to pay any rebate due to the United States 

in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and Notes; and that the Notes and the Bonds may 

be subject to such further terms and conditions as may be agreed to by a majority at least of the 

Councilors and the Treasurer of the Town to carry into effect the full intent of this ordinance. 



{EP - 02687967 – v2 }

Section 9.  That the law firm of Eaton Peabody shall act as bond counsel for the Town to 

advise the Town with respect to the issuance and sale of the Bond and the Note, and to prepare 

such documents and render such opinions as may be necessary or convenient for that purpose. 

Section 10.  That the Town Council and officials of the Town are hereby authorized to 

execute all documents and certificates, and to take all action, including affixing the seal of the 

Town, as may be necessary or convenient to carry out the full intent of this ordinance, and to 

accomplish the project and issue the Bond and the Note, including approval and signing of 

contracts and other agreements obligating the Town. 

Section 11.  That pursuant to Section 902 of the Town Charter, this ordinance shall go 

into effect only upon approval by the voters of the Town of Hampden.  Be it further ordained 

that a referendum of the Town of Hampden be held to decide this question on June 12, 2018, 

pursuant to the Town Charter and the laws of Maine.  The ballot question shall be substantially 

as follows: 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

BALLOT QUESTION NO. 1 

Ordinance authorizing appropriation and borrowing of funds to finance sewer improvements and 

repairs in the Town of Hampden through the issuance of general obligation bonds or notes of the 

Town of Hampden, which may be callable, in a principal amount not to exceed $2,424,000.   

Shall the above-described ordinance be adopted and the municipal officers have the authority to 

issue general obligations bonds or notes of the Town and accomplish the Project as described 

above and in the ordinance? 

[   ] Yes [   ] No 

ADOPTED:  Hampden Town Council, March 5, 2018. 

A True Copy, Attest:  ______________________________________ 

  Paula Scott 

  Town Clerk 



Proposed Sewer Borrowing 
Authorization

Hampden Town Council 

Finance & Administration Committee

Feb. 20, 2018

Angus Jennings, Town Manager



Proposed Sewer Borrowing Ordinance

• Draft borrowing ordinance, if approved by
Council at a March 5 Public Hearing, would
lead to voter referendum on proposed
borrowing authorization on June 12th

• Draft ordinance includes costs for four (4)
distinct sewer projects

• Project needs driven by MDOT construction,
poor condition of aging infrastructure, and
goal of reducing inflow & infiltration (I/I)



Background
• 2008 Sewer Plan

identified 7 sewer
priority areas:
poor condition,
and high inflow &
infiltration (I/I)
rates

• 3 of the 7
projects (and
part of the 4th)
are complete



CCTV Method
• Robotic pipeline CCTV inspections, footage

• Vendor applies a system for “Criticality and 
Risk Assessment of Collection Systems”

– Condition Assessment uses a standardized 
Pipeline Assessment Certification Program to 
determine condition and LoF (likelihood of 
failure)

– Risk Assessment determines CoF (consequence 
of failure)

• Results merged into Total Risk Grade



CCTV Review
• Cost estimate for closed-circuit TV (CCTV) 

review of entire system estimated at $300k

• Approved FY18 Sewer Budget included $60k 
in funding for CCTV – about 1/5 of system

• Locations scheduled for MDOT projects 
were prioritized

• Bid process and award to Ted Berry 
Company in March 2017; work began FY18

• Began receiving raw data fall 2017 (ongoing)

• Results of W&C analysis received Jan. 2018



Sewer Projects

1. Rte. 1A – Reconstruction Project Area
– Replace/rehab manholes, non-PVC pipe; replace 

all Asbestos Cement (AC) mains

2. Grist Mill Bridge
– Replacement of gravity and force mains

3. Western Ave. – Main Road North to 202
– Replace gravity main, laterals & associated 

manholes, incl. Dewey St.

4. Rte. 1A – south of Western Ave. intersection
– Replace main & associated manholes



Illustrative Project Boundaries

2. Grist Mill Bridge
3. Western Ave. & 
Dewey St.

1. Rte. 1A Reconstruction 
Area (incl. replacement pipe 
from Old County to Hillside)

4. Rte. 1A south of Western Ave.



Rte. 1A – Reconstruction Project Area

• Located within MDOT project reconstructing 
1.73 miles of highway – construction ant. 2019

• Voters authorized borrowing $600,000 to cover 
required 10% local match (est. $537k). These 
funds have not yet been borrowed.

• In August 2017, MDOT notified Town of 
potential conflicts between new road and 
existing sewer infrastructure

• Work scope: Replace manholes and AC sewer 
main from Old County to Hillside; raise 
manholes to elevation of new road



Grist Mill Bridge
• MDOT project reconstructing bridge –

construction anticipated to begin 2019

• Bridge includes both gravity and force mains

• Costs partly driven by need for bypass 
pumping while bridge is under construction 
– can be $20k/month



Western Ave. – Main Road North to 202

• Located within area of two MDOT projects:

– Paving (Mill & Fill), scheduled in 2020

– Full reconstruction (BACTS), proposed for 2022

• Sewer currently in poor condition: vitrified clay 
pipe, and brick manholes

• Identified as Project 5 on 2008 sewer plan

• Recommend replacing gravity main & laterals

• If done concurrent with BACTS project, will 
reduce paving costs – but add local cost sharing 



Rte. 1A south of Western Ave.

• Part of Priority Area #4 in 2008 plan

• Clay pipe, brick manholes; lots of structural 
issues. Approx. 1,400 LF.

• Recommending full replacement

• Pavement and sidewalk restoration will be 
needed due to location of sewer

• Not recommended to be concurrent with 
Route 1A reconstruction



Estimated Project Costs

Project Est. Cost Date of Estimate

Rte. 1A Reconstruction $924,000 February 16, 2018 (#)

Grist Mill Bridge $435,400 January 5, 2017

Western Ave. & Dewey St. $754,000 January 26, 2018

Rte. 1A south of Western $635,000 January 26, 2018

TOTAL: $2,748,400

• Cost estimates include contingency, engineering, 
and construction administration services

• Cost estimates are intended to be conservative

• (#) increased based on new info received today



Preliminary Estimate of Debt Service

• Assuming a 20-year term, and assuming the 
full amount was borrowed at one time, debt 
service is estimated at varying interest rates:

– 3.00% interest = $184,000 (total interest $927k)

– 3.75% interest = $197,000 (total interest $1.18M)

– 4.25% interest = $210,000 (total interest $1.45M)

– 5.00% interest = $219,000 (total interest $1.63M)



Potential Funding Sources: Pre-Borrowing

• Proceeds from existing debt authorization 
(up to $53,000)

• FY18 Sewer Revenue: would require Budget 
Adjustment to authorize expenditure from 
projected FY18 surplus ($73,500)

• FY19 Sewer Debt Service will decrease by 
about $101,000 from FY18 (due to payoff of 
1996 Sewer SRF, matured 10/1/17) – so, 
$101,000 of debt service could be added in 
FY19 without increasing Sewer Budget



Potential Funding Sources: Debt Service

• Could increase sewer rates

• Could revisit prior (pre-2000’s) policy of 
splitting sewer debt service 1/3 General Fund 
and 2/3 Sewer Fund

• Could reduce amount of repayment of 
interfund transfers from General Fund 
(budgeted at $100,000 in FY17 and FY18)

• Could reduce or eliminate annual payment 
of $60,000 from Sewer to General Fund

• Future Coldbrook Corners TIF revenues



Potential Borrowing Sources
• Maine Municipal Bond Bank (MMBB)

– Other than recent borrowing for overdue bills 
and Bangor cost-share, all prior sewer 
borrowing had been through MMBB

– Borrowing term of 5 to 30 years

– Interest rate not known; will vary based on 
market conditions at time of borrowing

– Applications will be due early August 2018

– Proceeds available early November 2018



Potential Borrowing Sources
• State Revolving Loan Fund (SRF)

– Sewer projects eligible for Clean Water Program

– Borrowing term of 1 to 30 years

– Interest rate 2% lower than MMBB’s cost of 
funds, with minimum interest rate of 1%

– Potential for limited loan principal forgiveness 
(depending on Federal appropriation)

– New eligibility requirements (incl. to develop 
and implement a Fiscal Sustainability Plan)

– Initial project request forms due March 30



Options for Ballot Question(s)

• Could delay Route 1A south of Western – it’s 
not part of an MDOT project – but this 
infrastructure is among the worst system-
wide, and is in a critical location

• Could split into 2 questions – one for the 
Route 1A south and one for the others



Next Steps
• Upon Council referral of Ordinance, public

hearing on Monday, March 5th

• Woodard & Curran will continue to work on
refining budget estimates – but proposed
borrowing would not exceed amount in
draft Ordinance proposed for hearing

• If Ordinance adopted, would go to voters on
June 12th – to include Treasurer’s Statement

• Extensive public outreach will be needed



MDOT Rt. 1A Reconstruction

• Project Scope: Full Road Reconstruction
• Construction starting spring 2019

• Identified Project Impacts:
• Reset all existing sewer manhole frames to

new road grade
• Possible replacement of section of forcemain

piping due to grade conflict with storm drain
(test pits planned to confirm)

• Outlets from clay dam trench drain piping
require extension

• Replace single conduit between Souadabscook
PS and CSO PS with duct bank

• Sewer main between CSO tanks and overflow
weir manhole requires replacement



MDOT Rt. 1A Reconstruction

• Sewer Inspection Results
• Primarily good condition
• AC sewer main from Old County to Mountainview

• Masonry block manholes
• Asset age >50 years
• Structural deficiencies and I/I sources identified

• Several undersized/non-standard sewer manhole 
frames and covers

• Several suspected non-PVC service laterals requiring 
replacement

• Recommendations
• Replace AC sewer main and masonry block 

manholes
• Replace in conjunction with MDOT project

• Preliminary Project Cost Estimate
• $924,000



Grist Mill Bridge Replacement

• Project Scope: Complete bridge removal 
and replacement

• Construction starting spring 2019
• Existing bridge completely removed before 

installing new bridge
• Expected complete detour during construction

• Identified Project Impacts:
• Existing gravity sewer and force main piping 

buried in concrete beam
• New steel beam bridge requires pipe hanger 

supports and insulation system 
• Replacement of all piping necessary
• Realignment of gravity sewer pipe and 

manholes upstream and downstream to 
Souadabscook PS

• Temporary system during construction 
necessary to maintain service



Grist Mill Bridge Replacement

• Recommendations:
• Install new piping with pipe 

hanger supports and insulation 
system 

• Realign gravity sewer pipe and 
manholes upstream and 
downstream to Souadabscook PS

• Preliminary Cost Estimate
• $435,400



Western Avenue and Main Road North

• Proposed BACTS road 
reconstruction project for Western 
Avenue 

• Construction proposed for 2022
• Main Road North

• Western Ave south to Skehan Center
• HWD water main replacement 
• Town sidewalk and pedestrian 

crossing projects
• Project Impacts

• Sewer identified as part of Priority 
Area 4 (MRN) and all of Priority Area 
5 (Western Ave)



Western Avenue and Main Road North

• Sewer Inspection Results
• Poor condition vitrified clay (VC) 

sewer main and brick manholes
• Numerous structural 

deficiencies and I/I sources 
identified

• Root intrusion and grease 
clogging

• Recommendations
• Full replacement of existing 

sewer, including Dewey St.
• Preliminary Cost Estimate

• Total $1.4MM
• Western Ave: $754,000
• Main Road North: $635,000



COMMITMENT & INTEGRITY
DRIVE RESULTS

One Merchants Plaza | Suite 501
Bangor, Maine 04401
www.woodardcurran.com

T 800.564.2333
T 207.945.5105
F 207.945.5492

January 26, 2018
Revised February 20, 2018

Sean Currier, Public Works Director
Town of Hampden
106 Western Avenue
Hampden, ME 04444

Re: Task Order 17 – Sewer Inspection Results Engineering Support
Revised with Task Order 16 – Route 1A MDOT Project Engineering Support

Dear Sean: 

The following is our summary review of the results of the 2017 sewer system inspection that was 
conducted by Ted Berry Company, per Task Order No. 17. The scope of this Task Order is to provide 
ongoing engineering support including a review of the sewer inspection results, improvement 
recommendations, and support with implementation of recommendations. 

We have updated the original version of this letter to include the status of impacts related to the Maine 
Department of Transportation Route 1A reconstruction project per Task Order No. 16. 

Background

The Town of Hampden (Town) contracted with Ted Berry Company to provide sewer and manhole 
inspection services for a multi-year contract. This work is being done to address compliance with 
Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) regulations, which requires elimination of infiltration and inflow (I/I) 
induced sewer overflows as well as reducing the excess volume of wastewater sent to the Bangor 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) to comply with the Town’s Interlocal Agreement with the City. 
Inspections conducted in 2017 included areas expected to be impacted by scheduled and proposed 
upcoming highway projects, including the Maine Department of Transportation (MDOT), Bangor Area 
Comprehensive Transportation System (BACTS), and Hampden Water District (HWD) projects as 
described in Table 1.

Table 1: Upcoming Project Areas
Project Area & Work 

ID Number (WIN) Project Scope Location Scheduled Year
Main Road North/Rt. 1A
WIN 021692.00 & 
011577.00

Full Reconstruction 
and Grist Mill Bridge 

Replacement
Western Ave north to 
Mountain View Drive 2018-2019

MDOT
Paving (Mill and Fill) 2020Western Avenue

WIN 023593.00 (MDOT) BACTS 
Full Reconstruction

Main Road North to 
intersection of Route 

202/Hampden Academy Not scheduled 
Proposed for 2022

Western Avenue
WIN 023326.00 Paving (Overlay)

From 0.18 miles west of 
Chapman Road to Route 
202/Hampden Academy 

intersection
2018

Main Road North/Rt 1A HWD Water Main 
Replacement

Western Ave south past 
Weatherbee School 2018



Town of Hampden, ME (213302.17) 2 Woodard & Curran
Task Order 17 Sewer Inspection Results Review January 26, 2018

Revised February 20, 2018

Woodard & Curran provided sewer infrastructure planning support in 2008, resulting in the identification 
of seven Sewer Priority Areas based on their condition. These areas were identified as having poor 
condition sewer and high inflow and infiltration (I/I) rates, resulting in sewer overflows and excessive flow 
to the Bangor WWTP.

Since 2008, several of the identified projects have been completed, addressing sewer replacement in 
Priority Areas 1 through 3 and a portion of Priority Area 4. Portions of the remaining Priority Areas are 
included within the listed project areas and are described further by respective project area. For reference 
purposes, the 2008 Sewer Priority Area Map has been included as Figure 1. 



W
OO

DA
RD

CU
RR

AN
CO

MM
IT

ME
NT

 &
 IN

TE
GR

IT
Y 

DR
IV

E 
RE

SU
LT

S

|  w
ww

.w
oo

da
rd

cu
rra

n.
co

m

On
e M

er
ch

an
ts

 P
laz

a, 
Su

ite
 50

1
Ba

ng
or

, M
ain

e  
04

40
1

20
7-

94
5-

51
05

SEWER  PRIORITY  AREA  MAP

Priority Areas 1 through 7
Town of Hampden

June 3, 2008

Description Construction
Technical
Services Contingency Total

Priority Area 1 $502,000.00 $57,500.00 $84,000.00 $643,500.00

Priority Area 2 $483,750.00 $56,000.00 $80,000.00 $619,750.00

Priority Area 3 $463,750.00 $54,000.00 $78,000.00 $595,750.00

Priority Area 4 $597,000.00 $67,500.00 $100,000.00 $764,500.00

Priority Area 5 $437,000.00 $51,000.00 $73,500.00 $561,500.00

Priority Area 6 $358,625.00 $43,500.00 $60,500.00 $462,625.00

Priority Area 7 $366,500.00 $44,000.00 $61,500.00 $472,000.00

TOTALS $3,208,625.00 $373,500.00 $537,500.00 $4,119,625.00

kcorbeil
Callout
MDOT Paving and Proposed BACTS Western Avenue Full Reconstruction

kcorbeil
Callout
Main Road North/Route 1A Water MainReplacement

kcorbeil
Callout
Main Road North/Route 1A Reconstruction and Grist Mill Bridge Replacement

kcorbeil
Callout
Western Avenue Paving Overlay

jhodgens
Rectangle

jhodgens
Rectangle

jhodgens
Rectangle



Town of Hampden, ME (213302.17) 4 Woodard & Curran
Task Order 17 Sewer Inspection Results Review January 26, 2018

Revised February 20, 2018

Inspection Results

Route 1A – Reconstruction Project Area

A large portion of the sewer within this project area has been rehabilitated as part of ongoing CSO control 
projects and consists of precast manholes with PVC sewer main. In general, the system was in good 
condition with a few isolated issues such as leaking service lateral taps, pipe sags resulting from backfill 
settlement, or infiltration at manhole joints. 

There was at least one instance of an active high flow from a lateral, indicating that the service pipe may 
be in poor conditions, a sump pump may have been in use, or a direct foundation or roof drainage 
connection was present. Further investigation of this service has not been conducted to date. 

A section of sewer on Main Road North extending from Old County Road to Mountain View Drive consists 
of asbestos cement (AC) main and manholes constructed with masonry block. Some significant issues 
were noted in this section of sewer main, including holes in the pipe, infiltration, roots, and other pipe 
damage. Many of the manholes showed signs of degradation including missing mortar and brick, frames 
and risers in poor condition, and poor invert condition. 

While this section of AC pipe and manholes was not previously identified as a Sewer Priority Area, the 
age and condition of the system warrants further consideration for rehabilitation. AC pipe was 
predominantly installed in the 1950’s and 1960’s, indicating an asset age exceeding 50 years. Gravity 
sewer mains are generally predicted to have a useful life of approximately 50 years. 

This project is expected to require grade adjustment for each of the 45 sewer manholes in the right-of-
way. Additional impacts may result from MDOT drainage system design or alignment impacts. A further 
review of the MDOT design plans is required for scoping of improvement work, which will be completed 
separately under the scope of Task Order 16. 

The MDOT design plans are currently preliminary and do not have all required existing sewer information 
incorporated; so, while we have been working with MDOT on design details, we have not been able to 
perform a complete review. MDOT design plans are expected to be finalized by summer of 2018. 

Western Avenue – Main Road North to Route 202 Intersection

The sewer main and manholes along this section of Western Avenue expected to be impacted by the full 
reconstruction project are some of the oldest in the Hampden system and are in poor condition. Piping 
consists of vitrified clay pipe (VCP) and manholes are constructed of brick. There are numerous structural 
pipe failures, holes, and active infiltration throughout this section of sewer main. Several of the manholes 
also have structural failures with barrel-section fractures, missing brick and mortar, and active infiltration. 

Several photos from the sewer inspection are presented to illustrate the deficiencies (see Figures 2 
through 4). 

Replacement of this section of sewer was identified as Priority Area 5 in previous sewer rehabilitation 
planning efforts. The Dewey Street sewer main was not inspected and the condition is currently unknown, 
although it may require rehabilitation as well as it is expected to be of the same installation era.



Town of Hampden, ME (213302.17) 5 Woodard & Curran
Task Order 17 Sewer Inspection Results Review January 26, 2018

Revised February 20, 2018

Figure 2: Example Hole in VCP

Figure 3: Example VCP Fracture



Town of Hampden, ME (213302.17) 6 Woodard & Curran
Task Order 17 Sewer Inspection Results Review January 26, 2018

Revised February 20, 2018

Figure 4: Example Manhole Barrel Fracture

Western Avenue – Route 202 Intersection to Mayo Road

The sewer system along this section of Western Avenue appears to have been constructed as part of the 
Interceptor and Collector Sewers Contract 3 around 1981 and consists of precast concrete manholes and 
PVC pipe. Piping and manholes were generally in good condition with isolated issues, including infiltration 
at break-in taps (services installed after installation) and grease deposits. The manhole closest to the 
Mayo Road Pump Station showed some surface damage, indicating a possible corrosion issue typical of 
hydrogen sulfide gas formation. Other manholes had poorly-formed inverts resulting from new mains 
being cut in and one manhole showed evidence of a leaking barrel joint. 

Main Road North – South of Western Avenue Intersection

The sewer main and manholes along this section of Main Road North is some of the oldest in the 
Hampden system and in poor condition. Piping consists of vitrified clay pipe (VCP) and manholes are 
constructed of brick. There are numerous structural pipe failures, holes, root growth, and active infiltration 
throughout this section of sewer main. Several of the manholes also have structural failures with barrel 
fractures, missing brick, and active infiltration. Grease deposition has been a known issue in this section 
of sewer as it serves several restaurants, exacerbated by intruding service laterals and root obstruction. 
Figures 5 through 7 show examples of these issues from the sewer inspection.

Replacement of this section of sewer was previously identified as part of Priority Area 4 in previous sewer 
rehabilitation planning efforts. The remainder of Priority Area 4 was replaced in a project completed in 
2015.



Town of Hampden, ME (213302.17) 7 Woodard & Curran
Task Order 17 Sewer Inspection Results Review January 26, 2018

Revised February 20, 2018

Figure 5: Example Hole in VCP

Figure 6: Example Root Intrusion



Town of Hampden, ME (213302.17) 8 Woodard & Curran
Task Order 17 Sewer Inspection Results Review January 26, 2018

Revised February 20, 2018

Figure 7: Example I/I Evidence of Gravel in Sewer

Improvement Recommendations

Route 1A – Reconstruction Project Area

The condition of sewer main and manholes was generally in good condition throughout the Route 1A 
reconstruction project, except for the section of sewer constructed of AC main and barrel-block manholes. 
There are several significant deficiencies in the AC pipe and in the manhole structures, which are barrel-
block construction and exhibited evidence of I/I from damage block and mortar joints. The type and 
condition of each sewer lateral along this section of AC main is not known, although one appears to be 
PVC based on the tap connection. There are approximately seven services connected to the 
approximately 1,800 feet of sewer main within the MDOT project area. 

Two barrel-block manholes and approximately 180 feet of AC main are located outside of the MDOT 
project area. 

In addition to the items noted above, several other items were identified as being impacted by the MDOT 
project, including the following:

 All the manholes along the Route 1A project corridor that are not otherwise replaced will require
adjustment to grade.

 Several manhole frames and covers are non-standard size and warrant replacement in
conjunction with grade adjustment work. The Town will need to furnish the frames and covers,
and the MDOT-selected contractor will perform the grade adjustment work.

 It is suspect that there are several service laterals within the right of way that may require
replacement, although the exact count could not be determined from the available sewer main
inspection data. Projects occurring since 2008 included lateral replacement within the right of
way and we were not able to confirm this for projects occurring before 2008.

 A section of forcemain in the vicinity of Sunset Avenue may require replacement due to a grade
conflict with proposed storm drain system piping. The extent is approximately 200 feet and
existing alignment cannot be determined from available Sewall design drawings.



Town of Hampden, ME (213302.17) 9 Woodard & Curran
Task Order 17 Sewer Inspection Results Review January 26, 2018

Revised February 20, 2018

 Several clay dam outlet pipes are located along the right of way that provide pipe trench
drainage. These will require lengthening in several locations to accommodate changes in
finished grade.

 The existing conduit between the Souadabscook Pump Station and the CSO Pump Station is
likely to be impacted by storm drain work. This conduit is also inadequate to allow future
electrical service reconfiguration that would allow the CSO Pump Station to be powered from
the Souadabscook Pump Station building, with backup power.

 The piping between the CSO overflow weir manhole and the CSO tanks was previously sliplined
due to a failure of the original cast iron piping. Excavation to repair was not feasible at the time,
so a reduced diameter lining pipe was used. The reduced diameter of this slipliner is
hydraulically restrictive and does not allow use of the full storage capacity of the CSO tanks.

We recommend the following actions:

 Replacement of all barrel-block manholes within the MDOT project area and replacement and/or
rehabilitation of the two barrel-block manholes outside of the MDOT project area.

 Replacement of existing AC main. Rehabilitation by lining may be feasible in this area but is not
the preferred option when replacement is possible in conjunction with road rehabilitation.

 Replacement of non-PVC service laterals along the AC main section between Old County Road
and Hillside Avenue.

 Replace non-standard manhole frames and covers in conjunction with required grade
adjustment.

 Replace non-PVC service laterals throughout project. As this is an indeterminate quantity and
difficult to verify with current information, recommend budgeting for 10 to 15 long-side service
replacements. This assumes that previous sewer replacement work included full service
replacement within the right of way in previous projects.

 Include a budget for replacement of 200 feet of forcemain near Sunset Avenue, although further
evaluation by testing pitting in the spring will be conducted to determine if this will be necessary.

 Include a budget allowance for extending/modifying existing clay dam outlet piping.

 Replace existing conduit run between Souadabscook PS and CSO PS with duct bank suitable
for power and communications wiring.

 Replace sliplined pipe between the CSO overflow weir manhole and CSO tanks with new 12-
inch PVC main.

A summary cost estimate for these recommendations is provided in Table 2 and a more detailed 
estimated is included as an attachment. 

The full impacts of the scheduled MDOT road reconstruction project have not been evaluated as part of 
the scope of this report and will be assessed as part of Task Order 16 and presented separately from this 
report.



Town of Hampden, ME (213302.17) 10 Woodard & Curran
Task Order 17 Sewer Inspection Results Review January 26, 2018

Revised February 20, 2018

Western Avenue – Main Road North to Route 202 Intersection

The condition of sewer along this section of Western Avenue warrants full replacement due to its poor 
condition. 

We recommend the following:

 Replacement of all gravity sewer and service laterals along Western Avenue.

 Replacement of gravity sewer and service laterals on Dewey Street to minimize future disruption.

o We recommend replacement through open-cut installation within the road right-of-way
to occur in advance of or concurrent with the scheduled road rehabilitation project.

For the purposes of this evaluation, we have assumed that the Town will conduct a stand-alone project. 
However, approaching it as a project concurrent with the road reconstruction project will minimize paving 
costs on Western Avenue, although the Town will be subject to local cost sharing. A summary total project 
cost estimate for this Work is provided in Table 2 and a more detailed estimated is included as an 
attachment. 

Western Avenue – Route 202 Intersection to Mayo Road

The sewer system along Western Avenue extending west from the Route 202 intersection does not 
require significant rehabilitation. Impacts from paving projects (overlay or mill and fill-type projects) are 
typically minimal and do not require structure replacement or grade adjustment. 

We recommend addressing deficiencies noted in the inspections such as replacement of broken manhole 
covers, reconstruction of manhole inverts for proper drainage, and sealing of manhole joints where 
infiltration is apparent. We also recommend addressing infiltration occurring at lateral taps by excavating 
and replacing, injection-grouting, or otherwise repairing the leaking tap connections prior to paving 
activities along Western Avenue. 

No cost estimate is provided for this Work as it does not require significant capital investment. 

Main Road North – South of Western Avenue Intersection

The condition of sewer along this section of Western Avenue warrants full replacement due to its poor 
condition. We recommend replacement through open-cut installation within the road right-of-way. 

As this area is scheduled for water main replacement in 2018 by the Hampden Water District, we 
recommend that the Town coordinate sewer replacement to minimize overall construction impacts. We 
do not recommend scheduling this work to occur while the MDOT Route 1A reconstruction project is in 
progress due to the combined impact of construction projects on the Route 1A corridor. Pavement and 
sidewalk restoration will be required for this project due to the location of the sewer. Coordination water 
main and sewer replacement 

A summary total project cost estimate for this Work is provided in Table 2 and a more detailed estimated 
is included as an attachment. 



Town of Hampden, ME (213302.17) 11 Woodard & Curran
Task Order 17 Sewer Inspection Results Review January 26, 2018

Revised February 20, 2018

Summary

Summaries of the sewer main and manhole inspection results are included as Attachment 1 and 
Attachment 2, respectively. This is intended to provide a quick reference to the type of sewer and overall 
condition until a more comprehensive reporting system is adopted by the Town. 

The estimated total project cost for each recommendation, including contingency, engineering, and 
construction administration services, is provided in Table 2. Detailed estimates are included as 
Attachments 3 and 4 for each respective project. 

Table 2: Summary Cost Estimate

Project Area Estimated Cost
Main Road North/Rt. 1A – Old County Road to Hillside Drive 
Sewer Rehabilitation $924,000

Revised February 20, 2018

Western Avenue – Main Road North to Route 202 
Intersection $754,000

Main Road North – South of Western Avenue $635,000

We trust the information provided within this letter is useful to the Town for budget planning. We would 
be happy to continue our work with the Town to prioritize the improvements discussed in this letter and 
to assist with implementation. If you have any questions or concerns, please don’t hesitate to contact me 
at 207-945-5105 or via email at kcorbeil@woodardcurran.com. 

Sincerely,

WOODARD & CURRAN 

Kyle Corbeil, P.E.
Technical Manager

KMC/jeh

cc: Jim Wilson, P.E. – Woodard & Curran

PN: 213302.17

mailto:kcorbeil@woodardcurran.com


ATTACHMENT 1

MAIN SUMMARY

Project Area Upstream MH Downstream MHLocation Pipe Material Pipe Diameter Pipe Length 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 Structural O & M Overall Index Quick Rating Notes

MN3008 MN3009 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 10 221.4 0 0 No issues

MN3009 MN3010 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 12 259 0 0 No issues

MN3010 MN3011 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 12 241.5 0 0 No issues

MN3011 MN3012 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 12 228.8 0 0 No issues

MN3012 MN3013 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 12 258.9 0 0 No issues

MN3013 MN3014 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 12 251.4 0 0 No issues

MN3014 MN3015 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 12 219.6 0 0 No issues

MN3015 MN3016 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 12 42.4 4 0 4 4.0 4100 Camera underwater

MN3016 MN3017 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 12 95.1 0 0 No issues

MN3017 MN3018 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 12 46.5 0 0 Heavy cleaning required to clear obstruction

MN3019 MN3020 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 101.6 2 2 0 2.0 2100 Large joint offset

MN3020 MN3021 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 421.6 0 0 No issues

MN3021 MN3022 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 347.5 2 2 2 2 2 2200 Sag near MN3021

MN3023 MN3024 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 164.9 2 2 0 2 2100 Crack in PVC at 248 ft

MN3022 MN3023 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 370.9 0 0

MN3024 MN3025 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 168.8 2 2 2 2 Sag at 161.3 ft

MN3025 MN3026 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 341 6 6 6 6 2 2600 Multiple sags, high water

MN3026 MN3027 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 357.3 14 14 14 14 2 2A00 Multiple sags, high water

MN3027 MN3028 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 175.8 6 6 6 6 2 2600 Multiple sags, pipe indented from backfill

MN3028 MN3029 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 174.1 0 0

MN3029 MN3030 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 261.8 0 0

MN3030 MN3031 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 253.5 0 0

MN3031 MN3032 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 254 0 0

MN3032 MN3033 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 12 37.9 0 0

MN3033 MN3034 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 12 152.4 0 0

MN3034 MN3018 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 12 156.2 4 0 4 4 4100 High water level from Sou. PS backwater

MN3018 SOUPS Main Rd N Ductile Iron Pipe 15 75.3 4 0 4 2 2200 Grease deposits

0 0

MN1001 MN1002 Main Rd N Asbestos Cement 8 200.8 10 10 0 5 5200 Holes in pipe at 1.4 ft and 157 ft (concrete filled?)

MN1002 MN1003 Main Rd N Asbestos Cement 8 212.2 4 0 4 2 2200 Deposits/gravel/concrete, intruding tap

MN1003 MN1004 Main Rd N Asbestos Cement 8 193.6 0 0 Chip in pipe bell

MN1004 MN1005 Main Rd N Asbestos Cement 8 200.5 0 0 Patch repair

MN1005 MN1006 Main Rd N Asbestos Cement 8 246.7 5 2 3 5 5 3.3 5131 Holes in pipe, infiltration weeper, roots

MN1006 MN1007 Main Rd N Asbestos Cement 8 227.8 4 0 4 2 2200 Roots, chip in pipe bell, small diam. Lateral (2")

MN1007 MN1008 Main Rd N Asbestos Cement 8 232.5 5 2 5 2 3.5 5121 Holes in pipe, infiltration weeper

MN1008 MN1009 Main Rd N Asbestos Cement 8 255.3 2 2 2 2 2 2200 Surface spalling

MN2001 MN2002 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 169.2 0 0

MN2002 MN2003 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 256.4 0 0

OC1000 MN2004 Old County Rd Polyethylene 8 251.7 4 8 0 12 Infiltration runner, defective breakin tap, high water level

MN2004 MN2005 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 303.9 0 0

MN2005 MN2006 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 177.1 0 0

MN2006 MN2003 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 197.9 0 0

Structural Operations & Maintenance Sum

D
O

T
 R

t.
 1

A
 R

e
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 B

ri
d

g
e

 R
e

p
la

ce
m

e
n

t 
2

0
1

8
/1

9



ATTACHMENT 1

MAIN SUMMARY

Project Area Upstream MH Downstream MHLocation Pipe Material Pipe Diameter Pipe Length 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 Structural O & M Overall Index Quick Rating Notes

Structural Operations & Maintenance Sum

MN3002 MN3003 Main Rd N Vitrified Clay Pipe 8 244.2 2 20 6 2 26 2.2 322A Several infiltration weepers, roots

MN3001 MN3002 Main Rd N Vitrified Clay Pipe 8 255.2 1 12 10 1 12 4 23 17 3.1 5241 Pipe fracture, holes in pipe, roots

MN3003 MN3004 Main Rd N Vitrified Clay Pipe 8 262.5 8 6 16 39 4 8 65 2.3 413A Numerous infiltration points and roots

MN3004 MN3005 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 288.1 2 2 2 2 2 2200 Sag

MN3005 MN3006 Main Rd N Vitrified Clay Pipe 8 42.3 26 0 26 2 2A00 Intruding services, numerious infilration weepers

MN3006 MN3007 Main Rd N Vitrified Clay Pipe 8 221 6 18 6 18 2 2A00 Grease-coated lateral, attached deposits, sags

MN3007 MN3008 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 10 31.1 0 0

0 0

WS1001 WS1002 Western Ave PolyVinyl Chloride 8 420.3 0 0

WS1002 WS1003 Western Ave PolyVinyl Chloride 8 423.6 0 0

WS1003 WS1004 Western Ave PolyVinyl Chloride 8 382.4 0 0

MAY011 WS1004 Western Ave PolyVinyl Chloride 8 67.6 0 0

WES001 WES002 Western Ave PolyVinyl Chloride 8 303 0 0

WES002 WES003 Western Ave PolyVinyl Chloride 8 395.8 0 0

WES003 WES004 Western Ave PolyVinyl Chloride 8 298.8 0 0

WES004 WES005 Western Ave PolyVinyl Chloride 8 194.5 0 0

WES005 WES006 Western Ave PolyVinyl Chloride 8 173.9 0 0

WES006 WES007 Western Ave PolyVinyl Chloride 8 374.3 4 0 4 4 4100 Infiltration runner at break in tap at 281 ft

WES007 WES008 Western Ave PolyVinyl Chloride 8 243.9 2 0 2 2 2100 Infiltration weeper at break in tap at 32 ft

WES008 WES009 Western Ave PolyVinyl Chloride 8 167 0 0

WES009 WES010 Western Ave PolyVinyl Chloride 8 396.4 2 0 2 2 2100 Grease deposits

WES011 WES012 Western Ave Vitrified Clay Pipe 8 220.9 4 15 8 15 4 42 4 3.3 5342 Multiple pipe fractures, infiltration weepers, holes in pipe

WES012 WES013 Western Ave Vitrified Clay Pipe 8 220 33 4 15 6 52 6 3.2 5341 Multiple pipe fractures, infiltration weepers, holes in pipe

WES013 WES014 Western Ave Vitrified Clay Pipe 8 152.8 18 5 12 23 12 2.7 5136 Pipe cracks and fractures, large holes in pipe, lateral full of debris

WES014 WES015 Western Ave Vitrified Clay Pipe 8 250.7 1 2 30 4 35 6 72 6 3.3 5741 Pipe cracks and fractures, multiple holes in pipe

WES015 WES016 Western Ave Vitrified Clay Pipe 10 43.5 3 4 2 7 2 3 4131 Pipe fracture, obstacle in pipe (repaired)

WES016 WES017 Western Ave Vitrified Clay Pipe 10 231.1 10 36 8 50 10 104 10 3.3 5A42 Pipe cracks and fractures, multiple holes in pipe

WES017 MN3007 Western Ave Vitrified Clay Pipe 10 245.2 24 8 55 2 87 2 3.8 5A42 Pipe cracks and fractures, multiple holes in pipe

0 0

MN1009 MN1010 Main Rd N Asbestos Cement 8 160.1 5 4 5 4 3 5122 Hole in pipe, concrete deposits, infiltration

MN1010 MN1011 Main Rd N Asbestos Cement 8 18.9 2 2 0 1 1200 Joint offset at AC/PVC connection, 22 elbows

MN1011 MN1012 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 214.4 0 0

MN1012 MN1013 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 335.9 0 0

MN1013 MN1014 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 287.2 2 2 2 2 Sag

MN1014 MN1015 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 329.4 0 0

MN1016 MN1015 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 368.3 0 0 Backfill indent on pipe

MN1016 INT000 Main Rd N PolyVinyl Chloride 8 55.4 1 1 0 1 1100 Joint partially separated at Fernco, outside drop

INT100 INT101 Main Rd N Ductile Iron Pipe 21 254.8 12 0 12 2.9 3026

INT101 INT102 Main Rd N Ductile Iron Pipe 21 195 6 0 6 2.9 3F23 Surface corrosion, infiltration weeper

N
o

 P
ro

je
ct

B
A

C
T

S
 W

e
st

e
rn

 

A
v

e
 

R
e

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n

D
O

T
 W

e
st

e
rn

 A
v

e
 S

id
e

w
a

lk
 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 P

a
v

in
g

 P
ro

je
ct

D
O

T
 R

t.
 1

A
 

P
a

v
in

g
 P

ro
je

ct
 

M
a

in
 R

o
a

d
 

N
o

rt
h

 S
o

u
th

 o
f 

W
e

st
e

rn
 A

v
e



ATTACHMENT 2

MANHOLE SUMMARY

Project Area Manhole Number Location In Pavement

Grade to Invert 

Depth (ft) 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 Structural O & M Overall

Manhole 

Rating LoF Condition Notes

MN3008 Main Road North at Western Ave Yes 9.7 3 7 3 7 10 1.0 2.0 Precast, installed in 2014, infiltration stain at joint

MN3009 Main Road North Yes 8.33 3 5 2 3 7 10 1.1 2.1 Precast, installed in 2014, infiltration weeper at grade ring joint

MN3010 Main Road North Yes 10.17 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, installed in 2014, infiltration stain at joint

MN3011 Main Road North Yes 7.58 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, installed in 2014, infiltration stain at joint

MN3012 Main Road North at Elm Street Yes 7.83 3 7 3 7 10 1.0 2.0 Precast, installed in 2014

MN3013 Main Road North No 5.5 3 8 3 8 11 1.0 2.0 Precast, installed in 2014

MN3014 Main Road North No 4.25 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, installed in 2014

MN3015 Main Road North at CSO PS No 7.41 3 7 3 7 10 1.0 2.0 Precast with inlet from 12" Interceptor and CSO PS

MN3016 Main Road North at CSO PS No 5.5 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast with inlet from CSO tank overflow

MN3017 Main Road North No 3.83 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast

MN3018 Main Road North at Sou. PS No 4.91 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, inlet to Sou. PS

MN3019 Main Road North Not inspected

MN3020 Main Road North No 8.17 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, installed in 2006

MN3021 Main Road North No 7.08 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, installed in 2006

MN3022 Main Road North Yes 7.91 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, installed in 2006

MN3023 Main Road North No 7.08 3 4 5 7 5 12 1.2 2.2 Precast, installed in 2006, cracked barrel section

MN3024 Main Road North at ___ No 8.17 3 8 3 8 11 1.0 2.0 Precast, installed in 2006

MN3025 Main Road North Yes 10.33 3 5 3 5 8 1.0 1.8 Precast, installed in 2006

MN3026 Main Road North Yes 12 3 5 3 5 8 1.0 1.8 Precast, installed in 2006

MN3027 Main Road North Yes 9.75 3 5 3 5 8 1.0 1.8 Precast, installed in 2006

MN3028 Main Road North No 8.42 3 5 3 5 8 1.0 1.8 Precast, installed in 2006

MN3029 Main Road North Yes 8.17 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, installed in 2006, misaligned inlet/channel

MN3030 Main Road North Yes 7.83 3 5 3 5 8 1.0 1.8 Precast, installed in 2006

MN3031 Main Road North Yes 7.17 3 5 3 5 8 1.0 1.8 Precast, installed in 2006

MN3032 Main Road North No 7 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, installed in 2006

MN3033 Main Road North No 10 3 7 3 7 10 1.0 2.0 Precast, installed in 2006, 4 way 12"

MN3034 Main Road North No 3.17 3 3 6 6 6 12 1.2 3.1 Precast, installed in 2006, frame offset

MN1001 Main Road North at Old County Road No 0 0 0 Not inspected

MN1002 Main Road North No 6.9 3 3 6 6 6 12 1.2 3.1 Barrel block, small break in pipe invert opening

MN1003 Main Road North No 6 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Barrel block, poor invert condition

MN1004 Main Road North No 5.5 3 3 6 6 6 12 1.2 3.1 Barrel block, missing mortar, poor invert condition

MN1005 Main Road North No 6 4 3 4 6 11 6 17 1.4 4.1 Offset frame, barrel block, missing mortar, poor invert condition

MN1006 Main Road North No 6 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Barrel block, missing mortar, break in pipe invert

MN1007 Main Road North No 6.3 3 3 6 6 6 12 1.2 3.1 Barrel block, missing mortar, break in pipe invert

MN1008 Main Road North at Carriage Lane No 7.58 4 4 7 2 8 9 17 1.3 4.1 Barrel block, missing mortar, break in pipe invert

MN2001 Main Road North No 5.67 3 5 3 5 8 1.0 1.8 Precast

MN2002 Main Road North Yes 6.67 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast

MN2003 Main Road North Yes 6.75 3 7 2 5 3 14 17 1.4 5.1 Precast, leaking insert cover

MN2004 Main Road North No 6.9 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast

MN2005 Main Road North No 6 3 7 3 7 10 1.0 2.0 Precast, debris on shelf and  in invert  from 4" lateral

MN2006 Main Road North at Frances Drive No 7.4 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, roots from bottom joint, poorly formed invert from Frances Drive

OC1000 Old County Road Yes 5.08 3 5 6 8 6 14 1.4 5.1 Precast, installed in 2015, frame offset

Operations & Maintenance 

Rating Sum

D
O

T
 R

t.
 1

A
 R

e
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 B

ri
d

g
e

 R
e

p
la

ce
m

e
n

t 
2

0
1

8
/1

9

Structural Rating



ATTACHMENT 2

MANHOLE SUMMARY

Project Area Manhole Number Location In Pavement

Grade to Invert 

Depth (ft) 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 Structural O & M Overall

Manhole 

Rating LoF Condition Notes

Operations & Maintenance 

Rating SumStructural Rating

MN3001 Main Road North Not inspected

MN3002 Main Road North Yes 7.67 3 4 6 7 6 13 1.3 4.1 Brick manhole, fractured grade ring

MN3003 Main Road North at Weatherbee School Yes 9.75 3 6 4 3 10 13 1.2 2.2 Brick manhole, infiltration weepers, gravel deposits on bench, lateral inlet without drop

MN3004 Main Road North Yes 7.33 3 3 6 2 6 8 14 1.3 3.1 Brick manhole, displaced brick in grade ring, gravel deposits on bench

MN3005 Main Road North Yes 6.9 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Brick manhole, gravel deposits on bench

MN3006 Main Road North Yes 8.17 3 7 2 3 9 12 1.1 2.1 Brick manhole, infiltration weeper at joint, 4" lateral without drop pipe

MN3007 Main Road North Not inspected

MAY011 Western Ave at Mayo Road No 8.4 3 4 5 7 5 12 1.2 2.2 Precast, surface damage to concrete barrel sections, possible H2S issue

WS1001 Western Ave No 6 3 7 3 7 10 1.0 2.0 Precast, Mayo PS discharge, may be mislabeled, should be WES1001?

WS1002 Western Ave No 8.08 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, Two unsupported pipe drop laterals

WS1003 Western Ave No 7.41 2 7 2 2 9 11 1.1 2.1 Precast

WS1004 Western Ave Yes 10.75 3 7 3 7 10 1.0 2.0 Precast

WES1001 Western Ave No 4.5 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast

WES1002 Western Ave No 6.17 2 4 6 2 6 8 14 1.4 4.1 Precast. Broken cover

WES1003 Western Ave Yes 7.5 1 3 6 2 3 4 11 15 1.5 3.2 Break in pipe invert, invert/bench modified

WES1004 Western Ave No 6.83 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast

WES1005 Western Ave No 5.83 3 7 3 7 10 1.0 2.0 Precast, incorrectly labeled pipe sizes???

WES1006 0 0 0 Not inspected

WES1007 0 0 0 Not inspected

WES1008 Western Ave No 6.58 3 6 2 3 8 11 1.1 2.1 Precast, infiltration weeper at joint, cut in invert 

WES1009 Western Ave No 11.75 3 7 3 7 10 1.0 2.0 Precast, unusual invert 

WES1010 Not inspected

WES1011 Western Ave Yes 6 3 3 7 6 7 13 1.2 3.1 Brick manhole, issue with chimney

WES1012 Western Ave Yes 6.33 3 8 7 11 7 18 1.3 2.4 Brick manhole, cracks in barrel, infiltration stain

WES1013 Western Ave Yes 7.41 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Brick manhole

WES1014 Western Ave Yes 6.75 3 5 3 5 8 1.0 1.8 Brick manhole

WES1015 Western Ave at Dewey St Yes 7.91 3 6 5 3 9 8 17 1.5 3.3 Brick manhole, large fractures in wall, missing brick, unusual invert in from Dewey

WES1016 Western Ave Not inspected

WES1017 Western Ave Yes 7.83 3 6 7 9 7 16 1.3 3.2 Brick manhole, large fractures in wall, missing brick

WES1017A Western Ave at Main Road North Yes 7.33 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Brick manhole

0 0 0

MN1009 Main Road North No 7 3 7 3 7 10 1.0 2.0 Concrete riser cone over barrel block, break in pipe invert

MN1010 Main Road North at Mountain View Drive No 7.08 4 3 6 4 7 10 17 1.3 3.1 Barrel block, missing mortar, break in pipe invert, poor invert condition, infiltration weeper

MN1011 Main Road North Yes 7.4 3 7 3 7 10 1.0 2.0 Precast, installed in 2009

MN1012 Main Road North at Hillside Drive Yes 8.4 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, installed in 2009

MN1013 Main Road North Yes 7.4 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, installed in 2009

MN1014 Main Road North Yes 7.4 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, installed in 2009

MN1015 Main Road North Yes 7.17 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast, installed in 2009

MN1016 Main Road North at Patterson Street Yes 7.75 3 7 3 7 10 1.0 2.0 Precast, installed in 2009

INT000 Main Road North at Patterson St. No 16.5 3 8 3 8 11 1.0 2.0 Precast

INT100 Main Road North No 5.4 3 5 3 5 8 1.0 1.8 Precast

INT101 Main Road North Yes 9.08 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast

INT102 Main Road North Yes 10 3 6 3 6 9 1.0 1.9 Precast

D
O

T
 R

t.
 1

A
 

P
a

vi
n

g
 P

ro
je

ct
 

M
a

in
 R

o
a

d
 

N
o

rt
h

, 
 S

o
u

th
 o

f 

W
e

st
e

rn
 A

ve

N
o

 P
ro

je
ct

B
A

C
T

S
 W

e
st

e
rn

 

A
ve

 

R
e

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n

M
D

O
T

 W
e

st
e

rn
 A

ve
 S

id
e

w
a

lk
 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 P

a
vi

n
g

 P
ro

je
ct

N
o

 p
ro

je
ct



 Bid

Item
Description Unit Unit Price Value

1 Administration LS 1 28,000$ 28,000$ 

2 Excavation of Unsuitable Materials CY 50 * 50$ 2,500$ 

3 Select Backfill CY 50 * 50$ 2,500$ 

4 Rock Excavation CY 50 * 200$ 10,000$ 

5 Pavement Repair - Town Roads, Driveways & Sidewalks SY 700 80$ 56,000$ 

6 Pavement Repair - State Roads, Driveways & Sidewalks SY 1,300 120$ 156,000$ 

7 Open Cut Main Replacement - Western Avenue LF 1,370 150$ 205,500$ 

8 Open Cut Main Replacement - Dewey Street LF 400 150$ 60,000$ 

9 Four Foot Diameter Pre-Cast Manhole - Western Avenue EA 8 6,000$ 48,000$ 

10 Four Foot Diameter Pre-Cast Manhole - Dewey Street EA 1 6,000$ 6,000$ 

$580,000

$87,000

$87,000

$754,000

OPINION OF PROBABLE COST 

Total Estimated project cost

15% Contingency

15%  Admin, Engineering & Construction Admin Services 

Total + Contingency 

Estimated

Quantity

TOWN OF HAMPDEN - SANITARY SEWER REPLACEMENT

WESTERN AVE - BACTS RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT

OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

January 2018

ATTACHMENT 3

1 Merchants Plaza, Suite 501 

Bangor, Maine 04401 
www.woodardcurran.com 

T 800.426.4262 

T 207.945.5105 



 Bid

Item
Description Unit Unit Price Value

1 Administration LS 1 24,000$ 24,000$ 

2 Excavation of Unsuitable Materials CY 50 * 50$ 2,500$ 

3 Select Backfill CY 50 * 50$ 2,500$ 

4 Rock Excavation CY 50 * 200$ 10,000$ 

5 Pavement Repair - Town Roads, Driveways & Sidewalks SY 200 80$ 16,000$ 

6 Pavement Repair - State Roads, Driveways & Sidewalks SY 1,500 120$ 180,000$ 

7 Asphalt Curb LF 960 12$ 11,600$ 

8 Open Cut Main Replacement LF 1,320 150$ 198,000$ 

9 Four Foot Diameter Pre-Cast Manhole EA 7 6,000$ 42,000$ 

$487,000

$74,000

$74,000

$635,000

* Indeterminate Quantity

15% Contingency

Total + Contingency 

Total Estimated project cost

TOWN OF HAMPDEN - SANITARY SEWER REPLACEMENT

OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

January 2018

Estimated

Quantity

OPINION OF PROBABLE COST 

15%  Admin, Engineering & Construction Services 

MAIN ROAD NORTH - SOUTH OF WESTERN AVE (REMAINING PORTION OF PRIORITY AREA #4)

ATTACHMENT 4

41 Hutchins Drive 

Portland, Maine 04102 
www.woodardcurran.com 

T 800.426.4262 

T 207.774.2112 
F 207.774.6635 

1 Merchants Plaza, Suite 501 

Bangor, Maine 04401 
www.woodardcurran.com 

T 800.426.4262 
T 207.945.5105 



TOWN OF HAMPDEN - SANITARY SEWER REPLACEMENT

ATTACHMENT 5 (REVISED)

MAIN ROAD NORTH - MDOT ROUTE 1A RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT

OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

February 2018

 Bid

Item

Description Unit

Estimated

Quantity

Unit Price Value

OPINION OF PROBABLE COST 

1 Administration LS 1 $ 65,000 $ 65,000

2 Excavation of Unsuitable Materials CY 50 * $ 50 $ 3,000

3 Select Backfill CY 50 * $ 50 $ 3,000

4 Rock Excavation CY 50 * $ 200 $ 10,000

5 Pavement Repair - Town Roads, Driveways & Sidewalks SY 200 $ 80 $ 16,000

6 Pavement Repair - State Roads, Driveways & Sidewalks SY 200 $ 120 $ 24,000

7 Open Cut Main Replacement LF 2,000 $ 150 $ 300,000

8 Four Foot Diameter Pre-Cast Manhole EA 10 $ 6,000 $ 60,000

9 Town-furnished replacement sewer manhole frame and cover EA 30 $ 500 $ 15,000

10 Adjust manhole to grade EA 30 $ 800 $ 24,000

11 4" SDR 35 PVC Sewer Service Open Cut Replacement LF 660 * $ 150 $ 99,000

12 12" DR 25 C900 Pressure PVC force main LF 200 * $ 175 $ 35,000

13 Clay dam piping LF 100 * $ 30 $ 3,000

14 Electrical duct bank LF 350 $ 100 $ 35,000

15 12" SDR 35 PVC Sewer Main LF 75 $ 175 $ 14,000

Total Estimated project cost $710,000

15% Contingency $107,000

15%  Admin, Engineering & Construction Services $107,000

Total + Contingency $924,000

41 Hutchins Drive 

Portland, Maine 04102 

www.woodardcurran.com 

T 800.426.4262 

T 207.774.2112 

F 207.774.6635 

1 Merchants Plaza, Suite 501 

Bangor, Maine 04401 

www.woodardcurran.com 

T 800.426.4262 

T 207.945.5105 



COMMITMENT & INTEGRITY 

DRIVE RESULTS 

One Merchants Plaza | Suite 501 

Bangor, Maine 04401 

www.woodardcurran.com 

T 800.564.2333 

T 207.945.5105 

F 207.945.5492 

January 5, 2017 

Sean Currier, Public Works Director 
Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, ME  04444 

Re: Souadabscook Sewer Pump Station and Force Main Review 

Dear Sean:  

The following is our summary review of the Souadabscook Sewer Pump Station (PS-2) and force main 
review per Task Order #13. We reviewed potential impacts from the upcoming Maine Department of 
Transportation (MDOT) Grist Mill Bridge replacement, including force main replacement and effects on 
pump station operation. The Grist Mill Bridge project is currently on the 2017/2018 MDOT Work Plan, 
along with a road rehabilitation project extending from Western Avenue to Mountainview Drive. The 
following tasks were included in the review: 

1. Research PS and force main as-built drawings, pump model and flow curve, operational records;

2. Confirm existing conditions via site visit;

3. Perform hydraulic calculations to evaluate force main replacement;

4. Review necessity for pumping modifications if applicable;

5. Produce summary memo with findings; and

6. Develop budgetary cost estimate for force main replacement.

On June 1, 2016, Woodard & Curran (W&C) visited the Souadabscook Sewer Pump Station, located at 
the Hampden Water District office on Main Road North. We collected equipment information and other 
site-specific information.   

We consulted with the Bangor Wastewater Department, who provides sewer pump station maintenance 
services for the Town, and Sargent Corporation, who installed the replacement force main in 2006. We 
also consulted with the MDOT and their bridge design consultant, T.Y. Lin International Group, regarding 
the new Grist Mill Bridge design and potential impacts on the utilities.   

This is not intended to be a comprehensive review of the Souadabscook Sewer Pump Station for planning 
purposes or preliminary engineering for pump station upgrades. We have provided recommendations 
regarding a comprehensive pump station review later in this report.   

Background 

The force main crossing the Grist Mill Bridge was originally installed around 1982 as part of Interceptor 
Sewer Contract 1 and extends from the Souadabscook PS to the vicinity of Chickadee Lane and Sunrise 
Lane, where it discharges to a 20-inch ductile iron gravity sewer main. The overall length is approximately 
4,040 feet based on the As-Built drawings. The Contract 1 As-Built drawings, dated February 1983, detail 
the original pipe as 8-inch diameter Permastran, which was an epoxy-fiberglass wrapped plastic pipe. It 
is not clear if the entire length of this main was Permastran, ductile iron, or other typical pressure pipe 
material.   



Town of Hampden, ME (213302.00 013) 2 Woodard & Curran 
Souadabscook Pump Station Review January 5, 2017 

The force main was partially replaced in 2006 by Sargent Corporation in conjunction with a gravity sewer 
replacement project, with replacement extending from the intersection of Dudley Road north to the gravity 
sewer transition. Per the Sargent project manager, Sean Milligan, the replacement section consisted of 
12-inch diameter pressure-rated PVC (AWWA C900 pipe trademarked as Blue Brute by JM Eagle). This
replacement section length is approximately 3,600 feet and did not include the section between the pump
station and Dudley Road intersection. We do not have drawings for the replacement project and have
relied on Town and Contractor information.

The connection point between the new 12-inch diameter pressure PVC pipe and the original force main 
in the Dudley Road intersection consists of a valved pipe manifold that was used to connect both the 
replacement force main and bypass piping to the remaining 8-inch diameter force main. Per Sargent 
Corporation, the valved manifold is thought to remain in place with the bypass piping end capped and 
gate valve operators buried.   

The 8-inch diameter force main crosses the Grist Mill Bridge as a buried installation between the road 
surface and the concrete structure with foam board insulation above and below the pipe, although exact 
construction details were not available on the As-Built drawings. Discussions with the MDOT indicate that 
there is 3-7 feet of soil over the existing bridge concrete beam. The force main otherwise appears to be 
typical of buried pipe installation practices.   

A 12-inch diameter PVC gravity sewer main also crosses the bridge parallel to the force main, connecting 
the sewer service area along Coldbrook Road and Main Road North to the Souadabscook Pump Station. 
Installation of this pipe appears to be similar to the force main, running approximately 155 feet between 
manholes with a slope of 0.024.   

The pump station consists of two Fairbanks-Morse 5400 series vertically mounted split case solids 
handling pumps. A pump data sheet obtained from Fairbanks-Morse is attached for reference. One pump 
is active and controlled by the single variable frequency drive (VFD) with constant level control, but can 
also be operated as a start/stop pump station based on high and low wet well level. The pumps are 
rotated in operation, but the VFD cannot be taken offline.   

Table 1: Existing Pump Data 

Manufacturer Fairbanks Morse 

Installation Year 1983 

Model/Size B5434 4x8 inch 

Stages/RPM Single stage 1770 rpm 

Impeller 13.65 inch 

Rated Flow 800 gpm @ 188 ft TDH 

Motor 75 HP 



Town of Hampden, ME (213302.00 013) 3 Woodard & Curran 
Souadabscook Pump Station Review January 5, 2017 

Evaluation 

We were able to conduct a preliminary review of the hydraulic conditions using the information referenced 
previously. However, we were not able to directly assess the pump or force main hydraulic performance 
due to the lack of suction and discharge pressure gauges. The gauge taps for Pump #2 appear to have 
broken off and have not been repaired. Properly functioning pressure gauges and maintenance records 
of their readings allow an assessment of pumping conditions, particularly regarding changes in pump 
performance and force main flows.   

At the time of the site visit, the Pump #2 speed was approximately 72% and cycling on and off based on 
wet well level. Based on the assumption that the pump is operating according to its published pump curve, 
the resulting flow rate is approximately 250-300 gpm, which is near the minimum allowable flow for that 
pump model. The calculated pumping capacity for the current pump arrangement and piping configuration 
(8-inch pipe and 12-inch pipe) is 1,600 gpm, although the actual capacity is likely limited by the motor 
horsepower as well as pump and pipe condition. The installed pump motor is rated for 75 HP and the full 
capacity of the pump exceeds that value. The capacity prior to force main replacement was approximately 
980 gpm.   

Force main sizing is generally dictated by minimum and maximum flow velocities to ensure that flows are 
adequate to maintain solids in suspension while not requiring excessive pump horsepower and power 
consumption. Generally, raw wastewater force mains should maintain a pipe velocity of 2 feet/second, 
provided that the pumping system generates a peak velocity of at least 3.5 feet/second each day to 
suspend settled material. The table below summarizes the current flow conditions and design parameters 
for the existing force main.   

Table 2: Force Main Summary 

Parameter 
Typical Design 

Velocity 
Estimated 

Flow 
Estimated Forcemain Condition 

8-inch 12-inch

Minimum 2 ft/sec 250 gpm* 1.6 ft/sec 0.8 ft/sec 

Daily Maximum 3.5 ft/sec 
Not recorded 

700 gpm required 

Not recorded 
1,230 gpm 
required 

Peak 8 ft/sec 1,600** 9.2 ft/sec 5.1 ft/sec 

* Estimated from current model pump curve.

**Estimated capacity using hydraulic calculations, not field-verified. 

As the table illustrates, the minimum velocity in both force main sections are below typical design values, 
although the velocity in the 12-inch section is less than one half the typical design condition. It is unclear 
if the Daily Maximum Velocity condition is achieved for either pipe section on a daily basis. 

Force mains are typically designed with peak velocities up to 8 feet per second to limit headloss and 
power consumption. We estimated that the velocity at peak pump capacity in the 8-inch pipe exceeds 
this value, while the 12-inch pipe remains well below. 

We evaluated using 12-inch diameter pipe for the full length of the force main and a small increase in 
capacity from 1,600 gpm to approximately 1,700 gpm was calculated. The relatively short length of 8-
inch main has a minimal effect on overall headloss and pump power consumption. 



Town of Hampden, ME (213302.00 013) 4 Woodard & Curran 
Souadabscook Pump Station Review January 5, 2017 

A 20-inch diameter ductile iron gravity sewer conveys flow from the pump station force main north toward 
the Bangor Wastewater Treatment Plant. The minimum slope of this line is 0.0006 feet/feet per the 1983 
As-Built drawings. We estimated the capacity of this 20-inch sewer main as approximately 1,400 gpm. It 
appears that the existing pump station capacity exceeds the capacity of the 20-inch diameter receiving 
gravity sewer. Any increases to the pump station capacity are likely to require additional gravity sewer 
capacity.   

The following is a list of other observations and conditions noted at the time of our visit: 

1. Pump installation date of 1983 indicates 33 years of use. The typical guidance for replacing
pumping equipment is 20 years unless regular maintenance and rehabilitation allows
otherwise. Similarly, valves, piping, and electrical equipment may also require replacement
due to age or to meet current code requirements.

2. Pump #2 exhibited noticeable vibration during operation, indicative of an out-of-balance
condition, motor bearing issue, or other mechanical problem. The Bangor Wastewater staff
were asked about this vibration and they stated that it has been ongoing for a significant
amount of time without noticeably affecting operation.

3. The piping and concrete support in the stilling well installed in 1996 is severely corroded. This
piping serves to contain effluent in the structure and prevent air entrainment from affecting the
pump suction lines.

4. Water level in the upstream manhole (located in the grass swale adjacent to Main Road North)
was near the pipe crown during relatively dry conditions. This appears to be primarily a result of
backwater effect upstream of the grinder station, but does presents a risk of clogging in the
gravity line due to inadequate velocity.

5. The access hatch to the north wet well has a failed hinge and did not operate properly.

6. There do not appear to be any wet well tank vents. Any vents should be equipped with odor
control canisters.

Recommendations 

We recommend that the Town replace the existing force main from the Souadabscook PS to Dudley 
Road in conjunction with the MDOT bridge project and that the pipe remain 8-inch diameter for the 
following reasons: 

 The pumping capacity is consistent with that required of an 8-inch diameter force main.

 The receiving gravity sewer is limited to near the current estimated pumping capacity.

 The Town’s permitted discharge volume and peak rate are limited.

 A larger size diameter results in low pipe velocity and risk of solids deposition and clogging.

 The additional pumping capacity and reduction in power consumption resulting from using a
larger diameter force main are minor.

The replacement of the existing 12” PVC gravity sewer main will also be required as the bridge design 
will not allow the current installation method.   

Due to the presence of ledge and pipe elevation requirements, it does not appear feasible to attempt to 
install the sewer utility piping to the immediate north or south of the bridge as buried piping. The Hampden 



Town of Hampden, ME (213302.00 013) 5 Woodard & Curran 
Souadabscook Pump Station Review January 5, 2017 

Water District has buried water main river cross to the north of the bridge, although this piping is not 
subject to the requirements of pressure or gravity sewer installation.   

The MDOT and their design consultant have indicated that the bridge will be a traditional steel or concrete 
beam design without any soil cover over the bridge deck. This requires a specialized type of pipe utility 
installation using pipe supports, insulation, expansion joints, and heat-tracing to prevent freezing of the 
pipe contents. The replacement bridge span will be longer than the existing span, with approximately 115 
feet compared to the existing approximately 50 feet. 

The bridge is intended to be replaced in its entirety in one operation, which means that the existing bridge 
and utilities will be completely removed to accommodate construction of the new bridge. The MDOT 
intends to request a road closure for this work, extending from 30-90 days during the summer, therefore 
no temporary bridge structure is planned. This method of construction will require bypass sewage 
pumping for the gravity sewer main and a temporary sewer force main installation during this outage, and 
until the new utilities are installed and ready for use.   

A budgetary cost estimate has been provided as an attachment. The estimate assumes the following: 

 Replacement of full length of 8-inch force main between pump station and Dudley Road
intersection.

 Replacement of 12-inch gravity sewer main between manholes spanning the bridge
(approximately 155-feet based on As-Built drawings).

 Temporary bypass pumping is required for the gravity sewer.

 Temporary piping is required for the sewer force main.

 Town is responsible for trench width pavement repair only where it affects driveways due to
concurrent MDOT road rehabilitation project.

 Town is not responsible for roadway concrete base repair.

 Installation requires a supported bridge crossing design (i.e. supported from the bridge structure
and not buried).

There is a significant amount of variability in the cost of a supported bridge crossing system, depending 
a great deal on the bridge configuration and materials of construction. We have prepared the attached 
estimated project cost breakdown using costs associated with recent steel I-beam and concrete beam 
bridge crossing construction methods. The estimated project cost resulting from the use of a suspended 
bridge crossing, including engineering, construction administration, part time inspection, and contingency, 
is approximately $493,500 to $777,000, depending on the type of design and support system 
requirements. 

As noted previously, we recommend a comprehensive pump station evaluation be conducted as part of 
a Preliminary Engineering Design prior to the implementation of any significant pump station 
modifications. The following is an example of Preliminary Engineering scope items related to long-term 
planning for the pump station, capacity, and sewer collection system impacts: 

1. Assess current wastewater flows using available records.

2. Identify potential for infiltration/inflow removal and impacts on pump station operation.



Town of Hampden, ME (213302.00 013) 6 Woodard & Curran 
Souadabscook Pump Station Review January 5, 2017 

3. Assess pump design, capacity, operation strategy, wet well configuration, electrical system, and
control system.

4. Assess the hydraulic profile of the existing pump station and modify to reduce pipe surcharging.

5. Present upgrade options for review and evaluation.

6. Identify permitting requirements.

7. Prepare Design Basis Memorandum identifying the intended scope of upgrades and preliminary
cost estimate for final design, construction, and contingency costs.

8. It is understood that infiltration and inflow (I/I) continue to affect the entire collection system. In
addition to the current program of sewer main replacement, we recommend that the Town
consider additional efforts at identifying and eliminating I/I.

We recommend that the Town allow for a Preliminary Engineering Design budget of $15,000 based on 
the scope presented. We can provide a detailed scope and budget for this work at your request. 

We trust the information provided within this letter is useful to the Town for budget planning. We would 
be happy to continue our work with Town to prioritize the improvements discussed in this letter and to 
assist with implementation. If you have any questions or concerns, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 
207-945-5105 or via email at kcorbeil@woodardcurran.com.

Sincerely, 

WOODARD & CURRAN 

Kyle Corbeil, P.E. 
Project Engineer 

KMC/eap 

cc: Jim Wilson, P.E. – Woodard & Curran 

PN:  213302.00 013 

mailto:kcorbeil@woodardcurran.com


· ~l L.E':'> NE:AL 

COl\lnd.ustrves~ Pllm11 mviston •·.·.f't<.,t- 2.. Foe. rEs.T .. ·-=-- 'W .,-~Re" .l:J1.\f'eit..U;;e_ T!R,1 N') 

• ~"< ;. : __ ~ /bftJ f CJ e, 1?..:6..!JL f'u fQ«!...llJ.<$?,•<'<..;:,.'.,----,---,---------
OAT~ ENlERf.O !DATE PROM}'iEO in-~ SHIPPEJl L""'_./? MOTOR S/N PUMP SERIAL NO. 

4- 19-'02.. _ I 5" 3 l_? - 2-b "'<5_L_ <J..i()~G__ ,/ C_"y />',Jjj....,_.,,ri?.:..._<_...t:.1__.k_,_,3"--::f=--'-l-_,,,O=Co:::..:t>:o.-cS=-i-14_.__ __ 
CUSTOMERS NAME I ~USIOMERP.O. 

BREC.IA ~ONSTltyc.T!DN C!.Q, ( HP.MPDEN,.-M.&llLE: ) L~1 e= 4-~.:-~'a~:::i_'-+-__ T~,l-l~ll2._Y~-----
l SFtC. WRITER CHECKER 

BUILD '2. PUMPS ON THIS ORDER ANO 0 OTHER PUMPS ON THIS OAO:;._;E~R~;;;,,.====d,R~-'::!l''"g·Y,J"'l(~l_!!.;:,it~.!,\ -4.~-~=======6d;k~3;,.-:J~l==-=Q~(o~Q:;,,~~1=4!==-d/..__ 
OPERATING CONDITIONS I SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS 

-==c=----'r:'.".~'.:'::"'"-+.:c=".:":"."'o-:-.::'7-"--1-:--,-----r ------r.:;-;;>;;:-;;:n:ro;""'.---~"5~0~D~-_,5~S~b~i:t.=1-1.r::N!....'2.SLsE\IE 4 Be.c:.~z.'§ <.;.e: !).'-. 
·" CEffTIFIEO CURVES J 

-~--~-----~--+:c:=---..,.,:-=-:----r-----~--- ~4 __ .JIX'l~V'.._'.E~S_JOb!,N~0~..__,,\4o"--u"'-'S"'-'-1..,,N ... < .... z:.._;:& Gi...P.NDJ SS I.MP & CA~ &1 uc.s,,. 
CURVES APPR'I). • 
BEFORE SHPM'T. S'$ IMP.CAP'i.{-l'.§"W °' WA.~1-\sV,. M'E.Ck\ ;;.,e,e;,L 

@YES D NO 

FACTOflY PUMP SFECIFICATIOHS AHO BILL OF MATERIAL 

PUMP DESCl!IPTION GENERAL 

SIZE I DIS. POS. SUCTION PR OJ, 

4- )( '8 #- 13 -IF IGURE "10. DISCH. PR OJ. 

B54-34- 3{, -
--· 

GPM TOH 
~00 I~-~ 

SUCTION LI FT 
SUCTION HEAD 

PUMP FITTING ROTATION TUBE PAQ.J. PUMP RPM MTR. S.F. 

I.F CC\ov" -- 111" If /L) 1.1 s 
C~E Nr· ~NTEE sucT ION Sl2 E 

$";J' -
(pl% <f311 ()c..;r. ;>.IL 

MTR. HP MTR.TYPE 

15 R"-9 
SHIP A.SSE MS LE O oasCH. Sil E 4- II f;::l VE S 0 NO 

IMPELLER DIA. OR .. b .. OIM. 

REFERENCE LINE 

__l_ 99 3 <J9D~ i::: _____ .R2_fil(Oj\) v ED CON"f!OL 5':(_~ t: NLl.yDES. 11R11
'SiAtt:" 

-----~--.--.....-----'-·------ -----'--·--- £f,,I4. $TArt:r<,Af.fIR,.1t.11_1-.H:r Q_F:'_j TllJ.f'___NOT __ TO eJILE:aJ ( 
PAGE _j__ OF~ KC 675 B '> DA 'iS • 

swthayer
Highlight



TOWN OF HAMPDEN

No. Description Unit Estimated Quantity Unit Price Value Unit Price Value

1 Administrative (5% of Subtotal) LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

2 Rock Excavation* CY 10 $200.00 $2,000.00 $200.00 $2,000.00

3 Excavation Below Normal Grade* CY 25 $30.00 $750.00 $30.00 $750.00

4 Select Backfill* CY 25 $30.00 $750.00 $30.00 $750.00

5 Provide 8" Class 52 Ductile Iron Forcemain LF 335 $100.00 $33,500.00 $100.00 $33,500.00

6 Provide Forcemain Bridge Crossing LS 1 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $180,000.00 $180,000.00

7 Provide 12" SDR 35 Gravity Sewer Pipe LF 50 $140.00 $7,000.00 $140.00 $7,000.00

8 Provide Gravity Sewer Bridge Crossing LS 1 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $200,000.00 $200,000.00

9 Provide 2" Rigid Insulation LF 200 $5.00 $1,000.00 $5.00 $1,000.00

10 Bituminous Pavement Repair SY 25 $140.00 $3,500.00 $140.00 $3,500.00

11 Test Pits EA 2 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00

12 Testing Allowance ALLOW 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

13 Temporary Bypass Pumping LS 1 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

14 Temporary Forcemain Piping LS 1 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

$322,500.00 $532,500.00

$112,900.00 $186,400.00

$435,400.00 $718,900.00

Concrete Beam Bridge Design

ENGINEERING, CONSTRUCTION ADMIN, PART TIME INSPECTION, CONTINGENCY (35%)

TOTAL

SOUADABSCOOK SEWER PUMP STATION FORCEMAIN AND SEWER REPLACEMENT

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

PROJECT NO. 213302

December 28, 2016

Preliminary Estimate

CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL

Steel I-beam Bridge Design

One Merchants Plaza | Suite 501
Bangor, Maine 04401
www.woodardcurran.com

T 800.564.2333
T 207.945.5105
F 207.945.5492



TO: Finance Committee and Town Council 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  February 1, 2018 

RE: Proposed Coldbrook Corners TIF Development Program and CEA 

At its January 17 meeting, the Planning & Development Committee referred the 
proposed Coldbrook Corners Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Development Program and 
Credit Enhancement Agreement (CEA) to the Finance Committee. 

At the time of referral, two material items in the Development Program were incomplete. 
Having resolved to its satisfaction other aspects of the proposal, the P&D Committee 
deferred recommendation on these items to the Finance Committee, specifically: 

1) Projection of “sheltered” TIF revenue to be available to the Town, for eligible
purposes, over the proposed 30-year life of the District; and

2) Proposed allocation of such revenue among the eligible purposes.

The enclosed Development Program projects an estimated $9.25M over the life of the 
District, based on the projected Increased Assessed Value to result from the 
Tradewinds project, and an additional assumed $4.5M in Increased Assessed Value 
within the District. Actual revenues may be greater than or less than this amount, but 
this represents a reasonable projection based on what is known. This also reflects that, 
after the proposed 13-year term of the CEA, 100% of the Tax Increment would be 
“sheltered” and made available for eligible purposes. 

My recommended allocation of projected revenues is included in Table 1 of the 
Development Program, and is summarized in the attached 1-page table (which is an 
exhibit to this memo – not an official part of the Development Program).  However, this 
is included to illustrate for the Council’s benefit the proposed allocation by percentage.  
In preparing these recommendations, I reviewed eligible uses and amounts in pre-
existing TIF Districts in Hampden, and have recommended an allocation that I think 
complements the other TIF Districts.  For example, I’m recommending a higher 
percentage allocation (10%) toward matching grants (Item 14), since there is not much 
funding available for this purpose in other TIFs, and this could be helpful to leverage 
State or Federal monies that may become available toward infrastructure or economic 
development purposes. 

At its discretion, the Finance Committee may refer a different proposed allocation to the 
Town Council, and the Town Council may – either in its referral on Monday, or at its 
public hearing anticipated for March 5, propose (and approve) a different allocation. 

Since the P&D referral, the TIF District maps have also been updated based on the 
P&D Committee’s recommendations. 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 
 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-2-b



Coldbrook Corners TIF Development Program, Authorized Expense Allocation (recommended)

$ %
Per year (30 

year term)

Investments Within the District

1 Capital Costs 2,960,000$      32.0% 98,667$          

2 Financing Costs 92,500$           1.0% 3,083$             

3 Administrative Costs 185,000$         2.0% 6,167$             

4 Organizational Costs 92,500$           1.0% 3,083$             

Category sub‐total: 3,330,000$     

Investments Made Necessary by District

5 Infrastructure Costs 1,480,000$      16.0% 49,333$          

6 Public Safety 555,000$         6.0% 18,500$          

Category sub‐total: 2,035,000$     

Investments Related to Economic Development

7
Costs of funding economic development programs 

and/or events
740,000$         8.0% 24,667$          

8 Economic Development Program Support 92,500$           1.0% 3,083$             

9 Costs of funding environmental improvement projects  462,500$         5.0% 15,417$          

10

Costs of funding to establish permanent economic 

development revolving loan funds, investment funds 

and grants

925,000$         10.0% 30,833$          

11
Costs of services and equipment to provide skills 

development and training
277,500$         3.0% 9,250$             

12

Costs relating to planning, design, construction, 

maintenance, grooming and improvements to new or 

existing recreational trails 

277,500$         3.0% 9,250$             

13
Costs associated with a new or expanded transit 

service
185,000$         2.0% 6,167$             

14
TIF revenues to be used as match for applicable State 

and Federal Economic Development Grant Programs
925,000$         10.0% 30,833$          

Category sub‐total: 3,885,000$     

9,250,000$      100.0%

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager. UPDATED 2/27/18.



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
HAMPDEN, MAINE 

 
 
 

An Application for a Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District 
 
 
 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 

HAMPDEN COLDBROOK CORNERS OMNIBUS 
MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT AND  

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Presented to: 
 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
 

DATED: March 5, 2018 
 

 
 
 

 
  



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 } i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 

I. INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................... 1 

A. Introduction to the Coldbrook Corners Project ............................................ 1 
B. Tax Increment Financing – Coldbrook Corners Project .................................. 1 
C. Tax Increment Financing – Hampden Economic Development Program ........ 2 

II. DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM NARRATIVE ............................................................ 7 

A. The Development District ............................................................................ 7 
1. Physical Description.......................................................................... 7 
2. Statutory Requirements and Thresholds ........................................... 7 
3. Duration ........................................................................................... 8 
4. Original Assessed Value .................................................................... 8 

B. The Project .................................................................................................. 8 
C. The Development Program .......................................................................... 8 
D. Operational Components ............................................................................ 9 

1. Public Facilities ................................................................................. 9 
2. Commercial Improvements ............................................................. 10 
3. Relocation of Displaced Persons ..................................................... 11 
4. Transportation Improvements ........................................................ 10 
5. Environmental Controls .................................................................. 10 
6. Plan of Operations .......................................................................... 10 

III. FINANCIAL PLAN ............................................................................................ 11 

A. Increased Assessed Values & Credit Enhancement Agreements ................. 11
B. Sources of Revenues .................................................................................. 12 
C. Public Indebtedness .................................................................................. 13 
D. Original Assessed Value ............................................................................. 13 

IV. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS AND THRESHOLDS ............................................ 13 

V. TIF PROJECTIONS and TAX SHIFTS .................................................................. 13 

VI. MUNICIPAL APPROVALS ................................................................................ 13 

A. Notice of Public Hearing ............................................................................ 13 
B. Minutes of Public Hearing Held by Town Council ....................................... 13 
C. Authorizing Votes ...................................................................................... 14 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   ii  
 

EXHIBITS: 

A-1 TIF District Map Showing District in Relation to Municipal Boundaries 
A-2 Map Showing TIF District Boundary 
B Statutory Requirements & Thresholds 
C Assessor’s Certification of Original Assessed Value 
D-1 TIF Revenue/Captured Assessed Values Projections  
D-2 Tax Shift Calculations 
E Public Hearing Notice 
F Public Hearing Minutes 
G Town Council Resolution 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   1  
 

I. Introduction 
A. The Coldbrook Corners Project 

Coldbrook Corners is an important intersection in Hampden. Traffic volumes are 
relatively high, reflecting travel going to or from Interstate Routes 95 or 395. Route 202, one of 
the roads comprising this intersection, carries traffic to and from Route 395, Bangor, and 
provides access to the Hampden Business Park and other industrial and commercial sites to the 
north. Coldbrook Road, the other road comprising the intersection, runs from Route 1A near 
the Penobscot River northwest to I-95. Given these major roadways, this intersection is busy 
and the land area around it is becoming more attractive for development.  

The town’s 2010 comprehensive plan recognizes this area as having growth potential, 
and most of the land in the proposed district is zoned for commercial use. Currently, one 
quadrant of the intersection is the site of a major trucking trailer company and a popular 
seafood restaurant, and another is used for a small auto dealership and repair facility. One 
quadrant is the 76-acre site of a former concrete plant, which is ripe for redevelopment, and an 
adjacent 77-acre parcel of undeveloped land. The fourth quadrant is the site where Southstreet 
Development, LLC (“the Company”) is interested in constructing a gasoline station with 
convenience store and other retail, as well as a stand-alone bank (the “Project”). High visibility 
and relatively high traffic volumes at this intersection are key to the Project. Hampden expects 
that development of this use in this location will anchor this area, and help spur development 
on other parcels within the District and along Coldbrook Road, heading toward I-95.  

B. Tax Increment Financing – Coldbrook Corners Project 

To make the Project investment financially viable, the Company has requested a credit 
enhancement agreement made possible through the creation of a Municipal Tax Increment 
Financing (“TIF”) district.  The establishment of a TIF district, together with the execution of a 
credit enhancement agreement between the Town and the Company, will help ensure the 
economic viability, allow the envisioned scale of the Project, and bring investment and jobs to 
the Town.   

The Town seeks to support the Project as it is anticipated to bring attention to the value 
of this high traffic intersection, and undeveloped land along Coldbrook Road between 
Coldbrook Corner and I-95, thus motivating new commercial investment on land in an area 
identified as a growth area for development by the Town.  The proximity to the interstate 
makes this an attractive area for development. In the past year public water service was 
extended from its prior terminus at 202 northwesterly along Coldbrook Road. However, the 
lack of sewer infrastructure along Coldbrook Road has limited the opportunities for 
development, and will continue to constrain opportunities.   



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   2  
 

The Town can designate the proposed TIF District consistent with the provisions of 30-A 
M.R.S.A. § 5223, adopt this Development Program, authorize a credit enhancement agreement, 
and accomplish the following goals: 

• Maintain the existing tax revenues generated within the Town; 
• Support the development of mixed use commercial development within a designated 

growth area thus enhancing the future tax revenues generated within the TIF District; 
• Provide resources (i.e. TIF revenues) for municipal economic development investments; 
• Encourage new commercial development;  
• Create employment opportunities for area residents; and   
• Improve the general economy of the Town as well as the Bangor Region and the State of 

Maine. 

In addition, by creating a TIF District, the Town can “shelter” the increase in valuation that this 
Project will bring about.  This tax shelter will mitigate the impacts that the District’s increased 
assessed property value would have on the Town’s share of state aid to education, municipal 
revenue sharing and its county tax assessment.  An estimate of the tax shelter benefit is shown 
as Exhibit D-2 attached hereto.  

In order to fulfill these goals, the Company property (a portion of Map-Lot 33-0-011-B) 
on the corner of Route 202 and Coldbrook Road along with thirteen other parcels (Map-Lots 22-
0-004, 22-0-004-1, 22-0-005, 22-0-005-A, 9-0-020, 9-0-020-A, 9-0-028-A, 9-0-030, 17-0-001, 17-
0-002, 33-0-002, 33-0-002-1 and 33-0-002-B), and the public right-of-way extending from this 
location northwesterly along Coldbrook Road to its intersection with I-95,  have been proposed 
as the “Coldbrook Corners Omnibus Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing 
District” (the “District”).  Through the creation of the District, together with a credit 
enhancement agreement (the “Credit Enhancement Agreement”) between the Town and the 
Company, a portion of the projected tax revenue generated from the real property taxes paid 
on the captured assessed value of the improvements made within the Company Tract (as 
described herein) of the TIF District will be allocated to and used by the Company to fund the 
Project and to pay eligible expenses which may include debt service associated with the 
improvements. These eligible expenses and potential investments are described more fully 
herein. 

Additional credit enhancement agreements may be approved within the Town Tract of 
the business park through an Omnibus feature of the District described herein. 

C. Tax Increment Financing – Hampden Economic Development Program 

The Town intends to use its portion of tax revenue generated from the taxes on real 
property paid on the captured assessed value of the improvements made within the District 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   3  
 

(the “TIF Revenues”) to finance some or all of the costs of public improvement projects and 
future economic development programs and initiatives which collectively will improve the 
Town’s economy and increase the Town’s ability to stand out in a competitive marketplace as a 
dynamic place in which to grow a business.  Anticipated Town Projects are described in Table 1 
below, such costs being authorized as project costs as defined under 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5225 and 
§ 5230.   

TABLE 1 
Town of Hampden Coldbrook Corners TIF District Project Costs 

Project Description Cost 
Estimate 

Statutory Cite 

Investments Within the District  

1. Capital Costs including but not limited to: 
• The acquisition or construction of land, 

improvements, public ways, infrastructure, buildings, 
structures, fixtures and equipment for public or 
commercial development district use, including, but 
not limited to: 

o sewer, water or stormwater utilities, electric 
lines, and roadway improvements. 

o public ways include the Coldbrook Road public 
right-of-way extending from Route 202 
northwesterly to I-95 

• Public safety measures including but not limited to 
turning lanes, road widening installation of turning 
lanes, signalization, or other traffic control; signal 
preemption for emergency response; 

• The demolition, alteration, remodeling, repair or 
reconstruction of existing buildings, structures and 
fixtures; 

• Site preparation and finishing work; 
• Fees and expenses including but not limited to 

licensing, permitting expenses, project design and 
planning, engineering, architectural, legal and 
accounting expenses.  

$2,960,000 30-A M.R.S.A. 
§ 
5225(1)(A)(1)(
a),(b), 
(c), and (d) 
 
 
 
 
30-A M.R.S.A. 
§ 5225(1)(A)(5) 

2. Financing Costs:  TIF Revenues may be used to finance any of 
the other projects listed herein.  Such costs may include, but 
are not limited to, closing costs, issuance costs and interest 
paid to holders of evidences of indebtedness issued to pay 

$92,500 
 

30-A M.R.S.A. 
§ 5225(1)(A)(2) 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   4  
 

Project Description Cost 
Estimate 

Statutory Cite 

for project costs and any premium paid over the principal 
amount of that indebtedness because of the redemption of 
the obligations before maturity. 

3.  Administrative Costs:  A dedication of reasonable 
reimbursement from District revenues to defray 
administrative costs in connection with the implementation 
of the development program, including pro-rated municipal 
staff salaries. 

 

$185,000 30-A M.R.S.A. 
§ 5225(1)(A)(5) 
 

4. Organizational Costs:  relating to the establishment or 
amendment of the district, including, but not limited to, the 
costs of conducting environmental impact and other studies 
and the costs informing the public about the creation of the 
District and implementation of the project plans.   
 

$92,500 30-A M.R.S.A. 
§ 5225(1)(A)(7) 
 

Investments Made Necessary by District  

5. Infrastructure Costs:   
Improvements directly related to and made necessary by the 
District including, but not limited to sewer, water or 
stormwater utilities, electric lines, and roadway 
improvements. Use of TIF Revenues for such improvements 
will be limited to improvements within the District and 
improvements outside the District pro-rated to include only 
the portion of improvements made necessary by the Project. 
 
 

$1,480,000 30-A M.R.S.A. 
§ 5225(1)(B)(1) 

6. Public Safety:   
As development occurs within the District, significant 
increases in traffic may require measures to address safety 
concerns outside the District boundaries. TIF Revenues will 
be made available to address those concerns through 
measures which may include, but are not limited to, 
installation of turning lanes, signalization, or other traffic 
control; signal preemption for emergency response; 
communications infrastructure: or fire protection equipment 

$555,000 30-A M.R.S.A. 
§ 5225(1)(B)(2) 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   5  
 

Project Description Cost 
Estimate 

Statutory Cite 

& maintenance if development requires equipment not 
currently owned by the municipality.   
 

Investments Related to Economic Development 

7. * # % Costs of funding economic development programs 
and/or events including, but not limited to:  

• Municipal economic development programs 
marketing the municipality as a business location, 

• Events that will attract visitors to the municipality, 
• Planning for economic development within the Town 

of Hampden, including but not limited to, Economic 
Development Strategic Planning, Feasibility Studies 
for a Downtown Development District, Downtown 
Redevelopment Plan, Transportation Planning, 
Broadband Feasibility Study, Utilities expansion 
feasibility etc. 

Pro-rated costs of staff salary or consultant fees to oversee 
the TIF program and to promote economic development 
within the Town.  

$740,000 30-A MRSA 
§5225 (1)(C)(1) 

8. * # % Economic Development Program Support 
Pro-rated share of dues to organizations that provide 
economic development support to the Town, such as the 
Eastern Maine Development Corporation. Such funding may 
include additional economic development services and 
contracts.  

$92,500 30-A MRSA 
§5225 (1)(C)(1) 

9. # % Costs of funding environmental improvement projects 
related to commercial activities in Hampden.  Such projects 
could include impact studies and watershed management in 
areas that affect, or are affected by, commercial 
development in Hampden.  

$462,500 30-A MRSA 
§5225 (1)(C)(2) 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   6  
 

Project Description Cost 
Estimate 

Statutory Cite 

10. # % Costs of funding to establish permanent economic 
development revolving loan funds, investment funds, loan 
guarantee programs, and/or grants.   

$925,000 30-A MRSA 
§5225 (1)(C)(3) 

11. # % Costs of services and equipment to provide skills 
development and training, including scholarships to in-state 
educational institutions or to online learning entities when 
in-state options are not available, for jobs created or 
retained within Hampden. Equipment may include 
broadband service to improve access to training and 
educational opportunities. 

$277,500 30-A MRSA 
§5225 (1)(C)(4) 

12. * # % Costs relating to planning, design, construction, 
maintenance, grooming and improvements to new or existing 
recreational trails determined by the department to have 
significant potential to promote economic development, 
including bridges that are part of a trail corridor, used all or 
in part for all-terrain vehicles, snowmobiles, hiking, bicycling, 
cross-country skiing or other related multiple uses. Trail 
systems are prevalent and active in Hampden, drawing 
visitors from surrounding communities.  

$277,500 30-A M.R.S.A. 
§ 5225(1)(C)(6) 
 

13. % Costs associated with a new or expanded transit service, 
limited to transit service capital costs, including but not 
limited to: transit vehicles such as buses, ferries, vans, rail 
conveyances and related equipment; bus shelters and other 
transit-related structures; and benches, signs and other 
transit-related infrastructure. 

$185,000 30-A M.R.S.A. 
§ 
5225(1)(C)(7)(
a) 
 

14. # % TIF revenues to be used as match for applicable State and 
Federal Economic Development Grant Programs 
To be used for purposes identified as authorized project 
costs in 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5225. 

$925,000 30-A M.R.S.A.  
§ 5230 

Total Municipal Investment Plan Costs:  $9,250,000  

 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   7  
 

* Projects identified with an asterisk (*) share funding with Dennis Paper & Foodservice TIF, a currently 
active TIF District within the Town of Hampden. 

# Projects identified with a hash tag (#) share funding with Coldbrook Road & Emera Maine Hampden 
TIF, a currently active TIF District within the Town of Hampden. 

% Projects identified with an asterisk (*) share funding with Hampden Business Park TIF, a currently 
active TIF District within the Town of Hampden. 

II. Development Program Narrative 
A. The Development District  

The District consists of real property and facilities within the identified boundaries and 
will exist for a total of thirty (30) years.  The Development Program described herein will serve 
the purpose of administering the District as a Municipal Development and Tax Increment 
Financing District pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as 
amended (the “Development Program”).  Subsequent to the Town Council vote designating the 
District and adopting the Development Program, the designation of the District and adoption of 
this Development Program will become effective on July 1, 2018, following approval by the 
Commissioner of the Maine Department of Economic and Community Development (“DECD”) 
and end on June 30, 2048.  The District is more fully described below in this Development 
Program and is depicted on the maps attached as Exhibit A.  The Town plans to capture one-
hundred percent (100%) of the increased assessed value of taxable real property located within 
the District. The Town will use the property taxes paid on such captured real property value to 
fund a Credit Enhancement Agreement with the Company of the Project, any subsequent CEAs 
with companies or developers of property within the District boundaries, and to fund municipal 
projects described in detail in Table 1 herein.  

1. Physical Description 

The District will encompass a total of 303.05+/- acres of property with a Company Tract 
and a Town Tract.   

Company Tract:  The Company Tract is a 24.2+/- acre parcel within the Coldbrook 
Corners District found on Town tax map 33-0-011-B. 

Town Tract:  The Town Tract is a collection of parcels within the Coldbrook Corners 
District found on Town tax maps 09, 17, 22, 33 and the Coldbrook Road public right of way from 
Route 1A to I-95 (303.05+/- acres).  Maps of the proposed District are presented in Exhibit A-1, 
a Locational Map and A-2, which provides detail of individual sections of the District.   

2. Statutory Requirements and Thresholds 

The Statutory Requirements and Thresholds form addressing the acreage and valuation 
conditions for approval mandated by 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5223(3) is set forth in Exhibit B.   



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   8  
 

3. Duration of the Program 

The District will be designated for a total of thirty (30) years, becoming effective on July 
1, 2018, following approval by the Commissioner of the Maine Department of Economic and 
Community Development (“DECD”) and ending on June 30, 2048. 

4. Certification of Original Assessed Value 

 The Original Assessed Value (“OAV”) of the District was $2,675,200 as of March 31, 
2017, (April 1, 2016). The Assessor’s Certificate of Original Assessed Value is included as Exhibit C. 

B. The Project  

 The Project, as described herein, consists of the construction of a “Tradewinds” retail 
food (small grocery) and gasoline establishment and other retail, as well as infrastructure 
improvements for the Project.  The District is designed to assist in financing of improvements 
put into place within the District. 

The Town intends to use tax increment financing to support the Project by allocating 
certain tax revenues generated by future new development within the District to the Project.  
Under the Development Program, the Town will make a portion of the incremental tax 
revenues from real property investments within the Company Tract of the District available to 
the Company pursuant to a Credit Enhancement Agreement, which Agreement will be 
consistent with the allocation of incremental tax revenue as detailed below in the Financial Plan 
section of this document and reflected in Exhibit D-1 attached.  These revenues will be used by 
the Company to pay costs of the Project directly or to pay debt service on funds borrowed 
privately by the Company to finance the cost of the Project. By means of a Credit Enhancement 
Agreement between the Town and the Company, a portion of the TIF Revenue generated solely 
from the property taxes paid on the captured assessed value of real property improvements 
made within the Company Tract of the District will be allocated to and used by the Company to 
fund Project costs.  The TIF Revenues will provide financial assistance for the Project itself, 
making it a more viable endeavor for the Company, including addressing significant up-front 
costs to develop the site due to existing topography, infrastructure and environmental 
constraints. 

C. The Development Program 

The Town’s designation of the District and adoption of this Development Program 
creates a single municipal TIF district in order to capture the value of the taxable real property 
improvements to be made within the District and enable the use of a portion of the TIF 
Revenues to assist the Company through a Credit Enhancement Agreement.  It will also permit 
a portion of the TIF revenues be used to finance various municipal economic development 
projects as set forth in Table 1 above.  



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   9  
 

This Development Program will run for a term of 30 years and will capture one-hundred 
percent (100%) of the increased assessed taxable real property value of the District.  The Town 
will retain the tax revenues generated by the captured assessed taxable real property value for 
designated economic development purposes.   

The Town will enter into a Credit Enhancement Agreement with the Company, which 
will allocate to the Company a portion of the TIF Revenues generated from the captured 
assessed value resulting from site improvements and building investment within the Company 
Tract. The credit enhancement allocation to the company will begin in Fiscal Year 2020 and shall 
continue for a total of thirteen (13) years, as set forth below in Section IV—Financial Plan. The 
Company will use such TIF Revenues to offset the cost of its investment in the Project, as more 
fully discussed in this Development Program.  Any TIF Revenues not allocated to the Credit 
Enhancement Agreement will be retained by the Town to fund municipal economic projects as 
described in this document.   

Through the Omnibus feature of this TIF District, the Town reserves the right to 
negotiate and execute one or more future credit enhancement agreements for up to the 
balance of the term of the District with up to one-hundred percent (100%) reimbursement of 
the TIF Revenues to a company or developer making investments within the Town Tract of the 
TIF District. Approval of such future credit enhancement agreements is at the sole discretion of 
the Hampden Town Council.  

The Town will retain any portion of the TIF Revenues not designated to a credit 
enhancement agreement for municipal programs and projects as discussed in Table 1 above.  
By adopting this Development Program, the Town will underscore Hampden’s commitment to 
business retention and growth; supporting its growing reputation as a desirable community in 
which to locate a business.  

This Development Program is structured and proposed pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 
30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended.  Subsequent to a public hearing and Town 
Council vote, and following approval by the Commissioner of the Maine Department of 
Economic and Community Development, adoption of this Development Program will be 
effective on July 1, 2018. 

D. Operational Components 

 1.  Public Facilities 

Please refer to Table 1 for the various public infrastructure improvements that TIF 
Revenues will support.  The Town will be responsible for these improvements as it deems 
necessary to accommodate future development.   



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   10  
 

 2. Commercial Improvements Financed Through Development Program 

The Company is responsible for costs and compliance related to the Project which 
consists of planning, permitting and construction of building and infrastructure improvements 
within the Company Tract of the District.   

By means of an Omnibus structure, the Town will have the flexibility to negotiate and 
execute future credit enhancement agreements with a company or developer of property 
within the Town Tract of the District.  Such credit enhancement agreements will be executed at 
the sole discretion of the Town Council and may provide a reimbursement of up to one 
hundred percent (100%) of the TIF Revenue generated for a term not to exceed the balance of 
the District term remaining at the time of approval.   

3. Relocation of Displaced Persons 

Not applicable. 

 4. Transportation Improvements 

Please refer to Table 1.  The Town will fund roadway and traffic improvements within 
the District and/or outside the District that are made necessary by the investments within the 
District. 

 5. Environmental Controls 

The improvements made under this Development Program will meet or exceed all 
federal, state and local environmental laws, regulations and ordinances and will comply with all 
applicable land use requirements for the Town. 

 6. Plan of Operation 

The Company shall be responsible for securing needed permits and for completion of all 
improvements it will make within the proposed Project area.  All of the personal property 
improvements made by the Company and located within the District are planned to be owned 
by the Company.  The Company will be responsible for maintenance expenses, insurance and 
taxes on all Project improvements. 

Any company or developer of private parcels within the District will be responsible for 
securing needed permits and for completion of all improvements to those parcels and for 
maintenance expenses, insurance and taxes on their project improvements.  

During the term of the District, the Town Manager or his/her designee will be 
responsible for all matters related to public ways and all administrative matters within the 
purview of the Town concerning implementation and operation of the District. 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   11  
 

III. Financial Plan 
A. Increased Assessed Values & Credit Enhancement Agreements 

Estimates of the increased assessed value of the District property, TIF Revenues to be 
generated by the District, and credit enhancement projections are shown in Exhibit D-1.   
Values presented in Exhibit D-1 reflect only projected new value associated with the anticipated 
investment in the Project within the Company Tract.  Timing and magnitude of potential 
investment in the Town Tract cannot be reliably projected so is not included. 

The Development Program provides that the Town will “capture” one-hundred percent 
(100%) of the increased assessed value over the Original Assessed Value on taxable real 
property of the District beginning on July 1, 2018 after approval of this TIF District and 
Development Program by the Commissioner of DECD.  The TIF Revenues so collected on the 
Company Tract of the District will fund tax reimbursements to the Company pursuant to a 
Credit Enhancement Agreement and/or contribute to the funding of the approved municipal 
projects as described on Table 1 hereof. At the end of the TIF term all taxable real property 
value captured in the District will be added to the general tax rolls. 

A thirteen (13) year period for tax reimbursements to the Company based on the 
Incremental Assessed Value (“IAV”) of the Company Tract will begin in Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2020.  
Reimbursement to the Company shall be sixty-five percent (65%) of the taxes on the IAV in year 
one of the tax reimbursement period, except that the following conditions shall apply:  If, in 
year one of the reimbursement period, sixty-five percent (65%) of the taxes on the Company 
Tract IAV is less than $19,500, then, provided District TIF Revenues are available, the Company 
reimbursement shall be $19,500, with the remaining portion coming from what would have 
been Town TIF Revenue.  This condition shall continue into subsequent years until the Company 
has received $19,500 in reimbursement.  If this condition is exercised, the actual dollar value of 
the Town TIF Revenues used to supplement the Company reimbursement to reach the $19,500 
shall be deducted from the Company reimbursement in the next year those revenues are 
available. In years two through ten (FY 2021-FY 2029) of the tax reimbursement period, tax 
reimbursements to the Company shall be forty percent (40%) of the taxes on the IAV. In years 
eleven, twelve and thirteen (FY 2030, 2031 and 2032) of the tax reimbursement period, 
reimbursements to the Company shall be thirty-six percent (36%), thirty-two percent (32%), 
and twenty-eight percent (28%) respectively, of the taxes on the IAV.  

Through the Omnibus feature of this TIF District, the Town reserves the right to 
negotiate and execute one or more future credit enhancement agreements for up to the 
balance of the term of the District with up to one hundred percent (100%) reimbursement of 
the TIF Revenues to a company or developer making investments within the Town Tract of the 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   12  
 

TIF District. Approval of such future credit enhancement agreements is at the sole discretion of 
the Hampden Town Council.  

Any TIF revenues not committed to a credit enhancement agreement will be retained by 
the Town to fund municipal TIF project costs as outlined in Table 1. 

Upon each payment of property taxes by the property taxpayers in the District, the 
Town will deposit into a development program fund (the “Development Program Fund”) the 
entirety of the property tax payments constituting TIF Revenues.  The Development Program 
Fund is pledged to and charged with the payment of the project costs in the manner provided 
in 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5227(3).  The Development Program Fund consists of two segregated 
accounts, a sinking fund account (“Sinking Fund Account”) and a project cost account (the 
“Project Cost Account”).  The Town will deposit the TIF Revenues necessary to pay debt service 
on any bonds issued to pay for District improvements, if any, into the Sinking Fund Account.  
The money in this account is pledged to and charged with the payment of interest and principal 
on municipal indebtedness related to the improvements in the District.  The Town will deposit 
any additional TIF Revenues into (a) a subaccount or subaccounts of the Project Cost Account to 
be used for credit enhancement payments to the Company and (b) to a subaccount of the 
Project Cost Account for other approved municipal projects outlined in this Development 
Program and not financed with Town indebtedness. Additional dedicated Development 
Program subaccounts will be created with each Omnibus credit enhancement agreement 
approved by the Town Council. 

The Town has agreed to enter into a Credit Enhancement Agreement with the Company 
over a period of thirteen (13) years as reflected in Exhibit D-1. Estimates of the increased 
assessed values of the District, the anticipated TIF Revenues generated by the District, that 
portion of the TIF Revenues to be applied to the District each year, and the estimated tax shifts 
are shown in Exhibit D-2. 

B. Sources of Revenues 

The Company will finance the Project through private funds.  The Company will be 
responsible for making all arrangements for, and payments with respect to, any additional 
indebtedness incurred to fund the Project. 

 Town Public Improvements that are not part of the Project will be financed with 
municipal resources including TIF revenues.  The Town will be responsible for making all 
arrangements for, and payments with respect to, any additional indebtedness incurred to fund 
the Public Improvements.  



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   13  
 

C. Public Indebtedness 

 The Town does not anticipate funding municipal project costs through public 
indebtedness.  The Town, however, reserves the right to incur bonded indebtedness for 
approved projects in the future, provided that the timing and funding of any bonded projects 
complies with all statutory requirements for paying bonded indebtedness with TIF Revenues. 

 D. Original Assessed Value 

 Certification by the Town’s Tax Assessor of the Original Assessed Value of the District is 
set forth in Exhibit C. 

IV. Statutory Requirements and Thresholds  

The Statutory Requirements and Threshold limits addressing the conditions for approval 
mandated by 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5223(3) are set forth in Exhibit B.   

V. TIF Projections and Tax Shifts 

In accordance with 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5224(4), the tables set forth in Exhibit D-1 and 
Exhibit D-2 show, based on planned investment within the Company Tract, for each year of the 
term of the District: (1) estimates of the increased assessed values of the District; (2) the 
portion of increased assessed values to be applied to the Development Program as captured 
assessed values; (3) the resulting tax increments (i.e., the TIF Revenues); and (4) the estimated 
tax shifts that are expected to result from the designation of the District.  There is no reliable 
way to project investment value or timing of full development of the District. 

VI. Municipal Approvals 

A. Notice of Public Hearing 

 Attached as Exhibit E is a copy of the Notice of Public Hearing regarding the 
establishment of the Coldbrook Corners Omnibus Municipal Development and Tax Increment 
Financing District and adoption of this Development Program for the District, published in the 
Bangor Daily News, a newspaper of general circulation in the Town, on February 23, 2018 a 
date at least ten (10) days prior to the public hearing.   

B. Minutes of Public Hearing Held by Town Council 

 Attached as Exhibit F is a certified copy of the minutes of the public hearing held on 
__________, 2018 at which time the proposed District and Development Program were 
discussed by the public.   



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   14  
 

C. Authorizing Votes 

 Attached as Exhibit G is a copy of the Hampden Town Council Resolution designating the 
District and adopting this Development Program, which Resolution was adopted by the Council 
at a meeting of the Council duly called and held on ________, 2018.  



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   15  
 

EXHIBIT A-1 
TIF DISTRICT MAP SHOWING DISTRICT IN RELATION TO MUNICIPALITY BOUNDARIES 

 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   16  
 

 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   17  
 

EXHIBIT B  
 STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS & THRESHOLDS  

  A. ACRE LIMITATION 

1. Total Acreage of Municipality 24,000  

2. Total Acreage of Proposed Municipal TIF District 303.05 

3. Total Downtown acres contained in the Proposed Municipal TIF District            -0- 

4. Total Transit acres contained in the Proposed Municipal TIF District -0- 

5. Total acreage of Proposed Municipal TIF District counted towards 2% cap (A2-A3-A4) 303.05 

6. Percentage of total acreage in proposed municipal TIF District (cannot exceed 2%) Divide A5 by A1 01.26. % 

7. Total acreage of all existing and proposed municipal TIF districts in the municipality. Add A2 to sum 
of all existing TIF district acreage. (See Stat Req Backup, next page) 672.42 

8. Total acreage of an existing or Proposed Downtown TIF District in the municipality. 0 

9. Total acreage of all existing Pine Tree Development Zone TIF Districts in the municipality. 0 

10. Total acreage of all existing or Proposed Transit TIF Districts in the municipality. 0 

11. Total acreage of all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts in the municipality counted toward 
5% cap. Subtract A8+A9+A10 from A7.  672.42 

12. Percentage of total acreage in all existing and proposed Municipal TIF Districts (cannot exceed 5%) 
Divide A11 by A1. 02.80% 

13. Total Acreage of all real property in the Proposed Municipal TIF District that is:  

(Note: a, b, or c must be at least 25%) Acres % 
a. Blighted                                                   (Divide acres by 

 
- - 

b.    In need of rehabilitation/conservation     (Divide acres by 
 

- - 
c.     Suitable for industrial/commercial site   (Divide acres by 

 
254 83.88% 

TOTAL 254 83.88% 

B. VALUATION LIMITATION 
1. Total Aggregate Value of Municipality (TAV)   

Use most recent April 1st 653,375,903 

2. Original Assessed Value (OAV) of Proposed Municipal TIF District.  
Use March 31st of tax year preceding date of municipal designation 2,675,200 

3. Total OAV of all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts in the municipality.  
Add b2 to sum of all existing TIF district OAVs (See Stat Req Backup, next page)  12,680,700 

4. OAV of an existing or proposed Downtown TIF District in the municipality. 0 

5. OAV of all existing Pine Tree Development Zone TIF Districts in the municipality. 0 

6. OAV of all existing or Proposed Transit TIF Districts in the municipality.                   0 

7. Total OAV of all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts in the municipality counted toward 5% 
cap.  Subtract B4+B5+B6 from B3 12,680,700 

8. Percentage of total OAV to TAV in all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts (cannot exceed 
5%).  Divide B7 by B1 1.94%             



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   18  
 

Statutory Requirements Backup Data 
 
 

Hampden Business Park 
    

District 
Year 

Established 
 
Acreage   OAV  

Expiration 
FY 

HEC 2008 1.64  87,400  2017-18 

Dennis Paper 2012 13.00  1,378,300  2027-28 

Coldbrook Rd/Emera 2015 224.39  1,582,200  2038-39 

Hampden Business Park 2017 130.34  6,957,600  2046-47 

TOTAL: 
 

369.37  10,005,500  
 

          
 
Coldbrook Corners 

    
District 

Year 
Established 

 
Acreage   OAV  

Expiration 
FY 

HEC 2008 1.64  87,400  2017-18 

Dennis Paper 2012 13.00  1,378,300  2027-28 

Coldbrook Rd/Emera 2015 224.39  1,582,200  2038-39 

Hampden Business Park 2017 130.34  6,957,600  2046-47 

Coldbrook Corners 2018 303.05 2,675,200 2047-48 

TOTAL: 
 

672.42 12,680,700 
      

     



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   19  
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

ASSESSOR’S CERTIFICATE OF ORIGINAL ASSESSED VALUE 
 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
COLDBROOK CORNERS OMNIBUS MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT & TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 

DISTRICT 

ASSESSOR'S CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned Tax Assessor for the Town of Hampden, Maine, does hereby certify pursuant 

to the provisions of 30-A M.R.S.A. §5254 that the taxable assessed value of taxable real property in 

the Coldbrook Corners Omnibus Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District, as 

delineated on a map included in the Development Program to which this Certificate is included, was 

$ 2,675,200 as of March 31, 2017, (April 1, 2016).   

As of the Original Assessed Value date, there was $-0- personal property which was 

exempt from taxation pursuant to the business equipment tax exemption within the Coldbrook 

Corners Omnibus Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEROF, This Certificate has been executed as of this XXth day of Month, 

 2018. 

TOWN ASSESSOR 

By: ___________________  
 

Original Assessed Value for Individual Tax Map Lots 
 

Tax Map and Lot Number 
 

Acreage 
Original Assessed Value as of 

March 31, 2017 (April 1, 2016) 
Town Tract 

09-0-020 
09-0-020-A 
09-0-028-A 
09-0-030 
17-0-001 
17-0-002 
22-0-004 

22-0-004-1 
22-0-005 

22-0-005-A 

- 
76 
2 

8.2 
45 
.5 
32 
2.7 
43 
4.7 
2.5 

- 
330,700 
566,300 

73,400 
41,600 

113,800 
49,900 

330,900 
878,200 

48,500 
185,600 

 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   20  
 

 33-0-002 
33-0-002-1 
33-0-002-B 
33-0-002-@ 

Rights of Way/Roads 

11.75 
1.2 
1.1 
-0- 

48.2 

-0- 
-0- 
-0- 
-0- 
-0- 

Total Town Tract 278.85 $2,618,900  
 

Company Tract 
33-0-011-B 

 

 
24.2 

 

 
56,300 

Total Company Tract 24.2 56,300 
Total: 303.05 $2,675,200 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   21  
 

EXHIBIT D-1 
INCREASED ASSESSED VALUE AND TIF REVENUE PROJECTIONS 

 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   22  
 

EXHIBIT D-2 
TAX SHIFT PROJECTIONS 

 
 
 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   23  
 

EXHIBIT E 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
TOWN OF HAMPDEN MAINE 

Regarding 
 

A Municipal Tax Increment Financing Development Program for the District Known as the 
“Coldbrook Corners Omnibus Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District”  

 
 Notice is hereby given that the Hampden Town Council will hold a public hearing on  
 

March 5, 2018 
at the 

Council Chambers, Hampden, Maine, 
The Public Hearing will be at 7:00 p.m.   

 
 
The purpose of the public hearing is to receive public comments on the designation of the 
proposed Coldbrook Corners Omnibus Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing 
District (the “District”), the Development Program and Financial Plan for said District, and a 
proposed credit enhancement agreement with the Company, Southstreet Development 
Company LLC, all pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised 
Statutes, as amended.  The proposed Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing 
District consists of approximately 303 acres of property located at the intersection of Route 202 
and Coldbrook Road known as the Coldbrook Corners, portions of Route 202, and Coldbrook 
Road from Route 1A to I-95.  
 
A copy of the proposed development program for the District will be on file at the Town Office 
10 days prior to the Public Hearing. 
 
All interested persons are invited to attend the public hearing and will be given an opportunity 
to be heard at that time. Verbal and written comments received prior to the close of the public 
hearing will be included in the public hearing record. 

 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   24  
 

 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   25  
 

 
EXHIBIT F 

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING AND TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   26  
 

EXHIBIT G 
TOWN COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

 
HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL   

ORDER #_______ 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Hampden, Maine (the “Town”) is authorized pursuant to Chapter 
206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes as amended (the “Act”), to designate a specified 
area within the Town as the Coldbrook Corners Omnibus Municipal Development and Tax 
Increment Financing District (the “District”) and to adopt a development program (the 
“Development Program”) for the District pursuant to the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is a need for economic development in the Town, in the surrounding 
region, and in the State of Maine; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is a need to improve and broaden the tax base of the Town; and 
 
 WHEREAS, designation of the District and adoption of the Development Program will help 
to improve and broaden the tax base in the Town and improve the economy of the Town and the 
region by attracting business development to the District; and  
 
 WHEREAS, there is a need to implement continued economic development initiatives in 
the planned District through the establishment of the District in accordance with the provisions of 
Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town desires to designate the District and adopt the Development 
Program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is expected that approval will be obtained from the State of Maine 
Department of Economic and Community Development (the “Department”), approving the 
designation of the District and adoption of the Development Program. 
 
 ORDERED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The Town Council of the Town of Hampden Maine, as the legislative body of 
said Town pursuant to Article II, section 205 of the Hampden Town Charter, hereby designates 
the Coldbrook Corners Omnibus Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District 
and hereby adopts the Development Program for said District; such designation and adoption to 
be pursuant to the following findings, terms, and provisions: 
  
 Section 2.  The Town Council hereby finds and determines that: 
 
 a.  At least twenty-five percent (25%), by area, of the real property within the District, as 
hereinafter designated, is suitable for commercial uses; and 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   27  
 

 
 b.  The total area of the District does not exceed two percent (2%) of the total acreage of 
the Town, and the total area of all development districts within the Town (including the proposed 
District) does not exceed five percent (5%) of the total acreage of the Town; and 
 
 c.  The original assessed value of all existing and proposed tax increment financing 
districts (including the proposed District) does not exceed five percent (5%) of the total value of 
equalized taxable property within the Town as of April 1, 2017 (March 31, 2016); and 
 
 d.  The designation of the District and adoption of the related Development Program will 
make a contribution to the economic growth and well being of the Town and the surrounding 
region, and will contribute to the betterment of the health, welfare and safety of the inhabitants 
of the Town, including a broadened and improved tax base and economic stimulus, and therefore 
constitutes a good and valid public purpose.  The Town has considered all evidence, if any, 
presented to them with regard to any adverse economic effect on or detriment to any existing 
business and has found and determined that such adverse economic effect on or detriment to 
any existing business, if any, is outweighed by the contribution expected to be made through the 
District and the Development Program. 
 
 Section 3.   The Town Manager, or his duly appointed representative, is hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed to submit the proposed designation of the District and the 
proposed Development Program for the District to the Department for review and approval 
pursuant to the requirements of 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5226.    
 

Section 4.  The Town Manager, or his appointed representative, is hereby authorized 
and directed to enter into the Credit Enhancement Agreement contemplated by the 
Development Program with Southstreet Development Company LLC, in the name of and on 
behalf of the Town, such agreement to be in such form and to contain such terms and 
provisions, not inconsistent with the Development Program, as the said Town Manager or his 
duly-appointed representative, may approve, his approval to be conclusively evidenced by his 
execution thereof. 
 
 Section 5.  The foregoing designation of the District and approval of the Development 
Program shall automatically become final upon receipt by the Town of approval of the 
designation of the District and adoption of the Development Program by the Department, 
without requirement of further action by the Town, the Town or any other party, and shall take 
effect in accordance with Title 30-A M.R.S. section 5224(2)(H) for the tax year subsequent to 
submission for the Department’s approval,  beginning July 1, 2018. 
 

Section 6.  The Town Manager or his duly appointed representative is hereby authorized 
and empowered, at his discretion, from time to time, to make such revisions to the Development 
Program as the Town Manager, or his duly appointed representative, deems reasonably 
necessary or convenient in order to facilitate the process for review and approval of the District 
and/or the Development Program by the Department, or for any other reason, so long as such 



 Coldbrook Corners Omnibus TIF Development Program 

{R1891674.2  57398-074578 }                                   28  
 

revisions are not inconsistent with these resolutions or the basic structure and intent of the 
District and the Development Program. 

 
 
Dated:  _________, 2018. 
 
 
       TOWN OF HAMPDEN, MAINE 
 
 
 
      (By) ______________________________ 
       Ivan P. McPike, Mayor 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Terry McAvoy, Deputy Mayor 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Mark S. Cormier, Councilor 
 
 
             
       ________________________________ 
       Dennis R. Marble, Councilor 
 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       David I. Ryder, Councilor 
 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Gregory J. Sirois, Councilor 
 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Stephen L. Wilde, Councilor   
           



 

{R1891679.2  57398-074578 }  

CREDIT ENHANCEMENT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN, MAINE 
AND 

SOUTHSTREET DEVELOPMENT, LLC 
 
 

THIS CREDIT ENHANCEMENT AGREEMENT, dated this ______ day of 

________________, 2018, is made by and between the TOWN OF HAMPDEN, a municipal 

corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Maine (hereinafter the 

“Town”), SOUTHSTREET DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a for profit Limited Liability Company 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Maine (hereinafter “Southstreet 

Development”). 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town has designated certain properties within the Town as the 
Coldbrook Corners Omnibus Municipal Development District and Tax Increment Financing 
District (the “District”) in accordance with Chapter 206 of Title 30-A, Maine Revised Statutes, 
as amended, by vote of the Hampden Town Council (the “Vote”) on ___________ ___, 2018; 
 
 WHEREAS, a certain property owned by Southstreet Development is located in the 
District; 
 
 WHEREAS, on the same date, the Council adopted a development program and financial 
plan (the “Development Program”) for the District; and  
 

WHEREAS, on the same date, the Council approved the execution and delivery of a 
credit enhancement agreement with Southstreet Development; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is expected that approval will be obtained from the State of Maine 
Department of Economic and Community Development (the “Department”), approving the 
designation of the District and adoption of the Development Program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town and Southstreet Development desire and intend that this Credit 
Enhancement Agreement be and constitute the credit enhancement agreement contemplated and 
described in the Development Program;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and in consideration of the 
mutual promises and covenants contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows. 



{R1891679.2  57398-074578 } 2 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

 
Section 1.1 Definitions.  For the purposes of this Credit Enhancement Agreement, the 

following terms shall have the meanings specified in herein unless the context clearing requires 
otherwise: 
 

"Agreement" shall mean this Credit Enhancement Agreement between the Town and 
Southstreet Development. 

 
“Assessment Date” means April 1st of each calendar year, the date fixed by Maine law for 

valuation and municipal tax liability with respect to the ensuing Tax Year. 
 
"Development Program" means the development program for the District adopted by the 

Hampden Town Council on ________________ ____, 2018. 
 
“Captured Assessed Value” means that portion of the Increased Assessed Value that is 

annually retained within the District for the purpose of funding the District Development 
Program, as provided in the approved Development Program for the District.  Provided, 
however, that “Captured Assessed Value” for the purpose of funding the District’s 
Development Program shall not include the taxable value of any new personal property or 
equipment to be located within the District.  As provided in the Financial Plan of the 
Development Program, the Captured Assessed Value shall be equal to one hundred percent 
(100%) of the Increased Assessed Value for each of the thirty (30) Tax Years beginning July 
1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2048. 

 “Current Assessed Value” means the taxable value of all real estate located within the 
District (excluding personal property and equipment) as of the annual Assessment Date.    

 
"Development Program" means the development program for the District adopted by the 

Hampden Town Council on _____, 2018.  
 
"Development Program Fund" means the development program fund described in the 

Financial Plan Section of the Development Program and established and maintained pursuant to 
Article II hereof. 

 
"District" means the Coldbrook Corners Omnibus Municipal Development District and 

Tax Increment Financing District designated by the Town pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 
30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, adopted by the Hampden Town Council on 
_______________ ___, 2018. The District consists of the property described in Exhibit A 
attached hereto. 

 
"Financial Plan" means the financial plan described in the "Financial Plan" section of the 

Development Program. 
 
"Fiscal Year" (sometimes abbreviated “FY”) means July 1 to June 30 each year or such 

other fiscal year as the Town may establish from time to time. 



{R1891679.2  57398-074578 } 3 

 
“Increased Assessed Value” means the amount, in any Tax Year, by which the Current 

Assessed Value in the District exceeds the Original Assessed Value.  If the Current Assessed 
Value within the District does not exceed the Original Assessed Value in any Tax Year, there 
is no Increased Assessed Value for that Tax Year.  

 
"Original Assessed Value" means $2,675,200.00, the assessed value of taxable real 

property located within the District, as of March 31, 2017 (= April 1, 2016). 
 
"Project" means the design, planning, development, acquisition, construction and 

installation of capital improvements at Southstreet Development’s facilities located now and 
hereafter within the District and as described as the Project in the Development Program 
Narrative. 

 
"Project Cost Account" means the Project Cost Account described in the Financial Plan 

Section of the Development Program and established and maintained pursuant to Article IV 
hereof. 

 
"Property Taxes" means any and all ad valorem property taxes in excess of any county, 

state or special district taxes, levied, charged or assessed against real estate located in the 
District by the Town or on its behalf.  

 
"Qualified Investments" shall mean any and all securities, obligations or accounts in 

which municipalities may invest their funds under applicable Maine law. 
 
"Retained Tax Increment Revenues" means, in each Tax Year this Agreement remains in 

effect, the amount of Property Taxes assessed and collected with respect to the Captured 
Assessed Value in the District pursuant to the terms of the Development Program, for the 
purpose of funding the Development Program. 

 
“Retained Tax Increment Revenues – Company Share” means, in each Tax Year this 

Agreement remains in effect, the percentages of Retained Tax Increment Revenues on 
property designated by the Town as Map/Lot 33-0-011-B (the “Company Tract”), to be 
returned to the Southstreet Development in accordance with this Credit Enhancement 
Agreement, for the purpose of defraying the Developer’s costs of developing and building the 
Project, which may include Company financing costs. 

As provided in section III.A of the Development Program, “Retained Tax Increment 
Revenues – Company Share” shall be as set forth in the following table, except that that the 
following conditions shall apply:  If, in year one of the reimbursement period, sixty-five 
percent (65%) of the Retained Tax Increment Revenues on the Company Tract is less than 
$19,500, then, provided District Retained Tax Increment Revenues are available, the 
Company reimbursement shall be $19,500, with the remaining portion coming from what 
would have been Town Retained Tax Increment Revenue.  This condition shall continue into 
subsequent years until the Company has received $19,500 in reimbursement.  If this 
condition is exercised, the actual dollar value of the Town Retained Tax Increment Revenues 



{R1891679.2  57398-074578 } 4 

used to supplement the Company reimbursement to reach the $19,500 shall be deducted from 
the Company reimbursement in the next year those revenues are available.  

 
District Year Company Reimbursement Period 
Year 1 N/A N/A N/A 
Year 2 Year 1 FY 2020 65% 
Years 3 through 11 Years 2 

through 10 
FY 2021 

through 2029 
40% 

Year 12 Year 11 FY 2030 36% 
Year 13 Year 12 FY 2031 32% 
Year 14 Year 13 FY 2032 28% 
Years 15 through 30 N/A FY 2033 

through 2048 
N/A 

 
"Tax Payment Date" means the later of the date(s) on which Property Taxes assessed by 

the Town against Real Estate located in the District are due and payable or are actually paid. 
 
“Tax Year” means the Town’s annual July 1st through June 30th fiscal year. 

 
Section 1.2 Interpretation and Construction. In this Agreement, unless the context 

otherwise requires: 
 

(a) The terms "hereby," "hereof," "hereto," "herein," "hereunder" and any similar 
terms, as used in this Agreement, refer to this Agreement, and the term "hereafter" means after, 
and the term "heretofore" means before the date of delivery of this Agreement. 

 
(b) Words importing a particular gender mean and include correlative words of every 

other gender and words importing the singular number mean and include the plural number 
and vice versa. 

 
(c) Words importing persons mean and include firms, associations, partnerships 

(including limited partnerships), limited liability companies, trusts, corporations and other 
legal entities, including public or governmental bodies, as well as any natural persons. 

 
(d) Any headings preceding the texts of the several Articles and Sections of this 

Agreement, and any table of contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, shall be 
solely for convenience of reference and shall constitute a part of this Agreement, nor shall 
they affect its meaning, construction or effect. 

 
(e) All notices to be given hereunder shall be given in writing and, unless a certain 

number of days is specified, within a reasonable time. 
 
(f) If any clause, provision or Section of this Agreement shall be ruled invalid by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of such clause, provision or Section shall 
not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof. 

 



{R1891679.2  57398-074578 } 5 

ARTICLE II 
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM FUND AND FUNDING REQUIREMENTS 

 
Section 2.1  Creation of Development Program Fund. The Town hereby confirms the 

creation and establishment of a segregated fund in the name of the Town designated as the 
"Coldbrook Corners Omnibus Tax Increment Financing District Development Program Fund" (the 
"Development Program Fund") pursuant to, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions of 
the Development Program.  The Development Program Fund shall consist of a single Project Cost 
Account, which shall include a Developer Project Cost Sub-account and a Town Project Cost 
Sub-account. 
 

Section 2.2  Deposits into Development Program Fund. The Town shall deposit into 
the Developer Project Cost Sub-account of the Development Program Fund within ten (10) days 
after each payment of Property Taxes with respect to Real Estate located in the District, an 
amount equal to that portion thereof constituting Retained Tax Increment Revenues - 
Company Share for the period to which the payment relates.  The Town shall allocate the 
amounts so deposited to fund fully and pay the payments due to Southstreet Development 
under Article III of this Credit Enhancement Agreement, both past due, if any, and coming due 
within the following 12 months.  After payment by the Town of the amount(s) due to Southstreet 
Development for each fiscal year, any revenue resulting from the investment of monies in the 
Developer Project Cost Sub-account that remains in the Sub-account at the end of the applicable 
fiscal year shall be transferred by the Town to the Town Project Cost Sub-account. 

 
Section 2.3  Use of Monies in Developer Project Cost Sub-account. Monies deposited in the 

Developer Project Cost Sub-account shall be used and applied exclusively to fund the Town's 
payment obligations described in Article III hereof. 
 

Section 2.4  Monies Held in Trust. All monies required to be deposited with or paid into 
the Developer Project Cost Sub-account of Development Program Fund to fund payments to 
Southstreet Development under the provisions hereof and the provisions of the Development 
Program, but excluding any investment earnings thereon, shall be held by the Town in trust, for 
the benefit of the Southstreet Development. 
 

Section 2.5  Investments. The monies in the Developer Project Cost Sub-account not 
immediately paid to Southstreet Development shall be invested and reinvested in Qualified 
Investments as determined by the Town. The Town shall have discretion regarding the 
investment of such monies, provided such monies are invested in Qualified Investments. As 
and when any amounts thus invested may be needed for disbursements, the Town shall cause 
a sufficient amount of such investments to be sold or otherwise converted into cash to the 
credit of such account. The Town shall have the sole and exclusive right to designate the 
investments to be sold and to otherwise direct the sale or conversion to cash of investments 
made with monies in the Developer Project Cost Sub-account. 
 

Section 2.6  Liens. The Town shall not create any liens, encumbrances, or other interests 
of any nature whatsoever, nor shall it hypothecate the Developer Project Cost Sub-account of the 



{R1891679.2  57398-074578 } 6 

Development Program Fund or any funds therein, other than the interest granted to Southstreet 
Development hereunder in and to the amounts on deposit. 
 
 

ARTICLE III 
PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS 

 
Section 3.1  Credit Enhancement Payments. The Town agrees to pay to Southstreet 

Development within thirty (30) days following each Tax Payment Date all amounts then on 
deposit in the Developer Project Cost Sub-account, excluding earnings thereon; provided 
however, that all payments made hereunder shall be used only to pay Company Project Costs 
directly or to reimburse Southstreet Development for payment of Project Costs (including 
payment or reimbursement of debt service on indebtedness incurred to finance such Project 
Costs). 

 
Such reimbursement payments shall be made by the Town in each Tax Year beginning 

with the Tax Year starting July 1, 2019 and ending with at the conclusion of the Tax Year 
ending June 30, 2032.  The Town shall make all such payments with respect to the District to 
Southstreet Development, its successors and assigns. The obligation of the Town to make such 
payments shall be a limited obligation payable solely out of monies actually on deposit in the 
Developer Project Cost Sub-account of the Development Program Fund and shall not 
constitute a general debt or obligation on the part of the Town or a general obligation or charge 
against or pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of the Town, the State of Maine or 
any political subdivision thereof. 
 

Section 3.2  Failure to Make Payment. In the event the Town should fail to or be 
unable to make any of the payments required under Section 3.1 hereof, the item or installment 
so unpaid shall continue from year-to-year as a limited obligation of the Town under the 
terms and conditions hereinafter set forth until the unpaid amount shall have been fully paid.  
In the event of such default by the Town, Southstreet Development shall also have the right to 
initiate and maintain an action to specifically enforce the Town's obligations hereunder, 
including without limitation, the Town's obligation to deposit all Retained Tax Increment 
Revenues – Company Share to the Developer project Cost Sub-account of the Development 
Program Fund and to make payments to Southstreet Development. 
 

Section 3.3  Manner of Payments. The payments provided for in this Article III shall be 
paid in immediately available funds directly to Southstreet Development in the manner 
provided hereinabove for its own use and benefit. 

 
Section 3.3A  Company Payment Obligations.  Southstreet Development agrees that 

during the term of this Agreement it shall pay, when due, all amounts lawfully assessed by the 
Town as Property Taxes against Real Estate located in the District.  

 
In the event that Southstreet Development shall fail, for any reason, to pay the full 

amount of any such lawful Property Tax assessment when due, amounts actually paid by 
Southstreet Development shall be applied as follows: 



{R1891679.2  57398-074578 } 7 

 
First, to payment of Property Taxes assessed against that portion of Real Estate located in 

the District constituting the Original Assessed Value of the District; 
 
Second, to payment the Town’s portion of Retained Tax Increment Revenues on Real 

Estate located in the District; and 
 
Third, to payment of Retained Tax Increment Revenues – Company Share. 
 
Section 3.3B  Property Tax Valuation Appeals.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be 

deemed to waive Southstreet Development’s right to appeal the Town’s valuation or assessment 
of its Real Estate or other Property located in the District for tax purposes, in the same manner as 
provided by law for assessment and valuation appeals.  Provided however, that in the event of a 
successful valuation appeal with respect to Real Estate located in the District, all amounts due to 
Southstreet Development under this Agreement as property tax reimbursements shall be based 
upon the final valuation and tax amount actually paid for the Tax Year concerned, as determined 
through the appeals process. 
 

Section 3.4  Obligations Unconditional.  Except as directly provided herein, the 
obligations of the Town to make the payments described in this Agreement in accordance with 
the terms hereof shall be absolute and unconditional irrespective of any defense or any rights 
of setoff, recoupment or counterclaim it might otherwise have against Southstreet Development. 
Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the Town shall not suspend or discontinue any 
such payment or terminate this Agreement for any cause, including without limitation, any 
acts or circumstances that may constitute failure of consideration or frustration of purpose 
or any damage to or destruction of the Project or any change in the tax or other laws of the 
United States, the State of Maine or any political subdivision of either thereof, or any failure 
of the Developer to perform and observe any agreement or covenant, whether expressed or 
implied, or any duty, liability or obligation arising out of or connected with this Agreement or 
the Development Program. 
  

Section 3.5  Limited Obligation.  The Town's obligations of payment hereunder shall be 
limited obligations of the Town payable solely from monies on deposit in the Developer Project 
Cost Sub-account of the Development Program Fund, pledged therefor under this Agreement. 
The Town's obligations hereunder shall not constitute a general debt or a general obligation or 
charge against or pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of the Town, the State of Maine, 
or of any municipality or political subdivision thereof, but shall be payable solely from Retained 
Tax Increment Revenues – Company Share payable to Southstreet Development hereunder, 
whether or not actually deposited into the Developer Project Cost Sub-account of the 
Development Program Fund. This Agreement shall not directly or indirectly or contingently 
obligate the Town, the State of Maine, or any other municipality or political subdivision to 
levy or to pledge any form of taxation or to levy or to make any appropriation for their 
payment, excepting the Town's obligation to levy property taxes upon the Project and the 
pledge of the Retained Tax Increment Revenues, and earnings thereon, established under this 
Agreement. 

 



{R1891679.2  57398-074578 } 8 

Section 3.7  Indemnity.  Southstreet Development agrees to defend, indemnify, 
pay, reimburse and hold the Town, its councilors, officers, agents and employees 
harmless from and against any and all claims, suits, liabilities, actions, proceedings and 
expenses, including, without limitation, attorneys fees and expenses and accountant’s fees 
and expenses, arising out of this Agreement, the Development Program or any claim or 
illegality or invalidity of the Agreement or the Development Program or the Town’s 
approval of the District, this Agreement or the Development Program or out of the 
Town’s preparation and participation of this Agreement or the Development.  Provided, 
however, that these indemnification provisions shall apply only to matters directly related 
to the Tax Increment Financing portion of the Development Program and this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
PLEDGE AND SECURITY INTEREST 

 
Section 4.1  Pledge of Developer Project Cost Sub-account.  In consideration of this 

Agreement and other valuable consideration and for the purpose of securing payment of the 
amounts provided for hereunder to Southstreet Development by the Town, according to the terms 
and conditions contained herein, and in order to secure the performance and observance of all 
of the Town's covenants and agreements contained herein, the Town does hereby grant a security 
interest in and pledge to Southstreet Development the Developer Project Cost Sub-account of 
the Development Program Fund to the extent of Southstreet Development's rights under this 
Agreement to receive funds from such Project Cost Account and all sums of money and other 
securities and investments now or hereafter therein. 
 

Section 4.2  Perfection of Interest.  The Town shall cooperate with Southstreet 
Development in causing appropriate financing statements and continuation statements naming 
Southstreet Development as pledge of all amounts from time to time on deposit in the Developer 
Project Cost Sub-account of the Development Program Fund to be duly filed and recorded in the 
appropriate state offices as required by and permitted under the provisions of the Maine Uniform 
Commercial Code or other similar law as adopted in the State of Maine and any other applicable 
jurisdiction, as from time to time amended, in order to perfect and maintain the security 
interests created hereunder. 
 

Section 4.3  Further Instruments.  The Town shall, upon the reasonable request of 
Southstreet Development, at Southstreet Development’s sole expense, from time to time execute 
and deliver such further instruments and take such further action as may be reasonable and as may 
be required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement; provided, however, that no such 
instruments or actions shall impose any obligation or expense on the Town additional to the 
obligations and expenses contained elsewhere herein or constitute a pledge of the credit of the 
Town. 
 

Section 4.4  No Disposition of Developer Project Cost Sub-account.  Except as 
permitted hereunder, the Town shall not sell, lease, pledge, assign or otherwise dispose, 
encumber or hypothecate any interest in the Developer Project Cost Sub-account of the 



{R1891679.2  57398-074578 } 9 

Development Program Fund and will promptly pay or cause to be discharged or make adequate 
provision to discharge any lien, charge or encumbrance on any part hereof not permitted hereby. 
 

Section 4.5  Access to Books and Records.  All books, records and documents in the 
possession of the Town relating to the District, the Development Program, this Agreement and the 
monies, revenues and receipts on deposit or required to be deposited into the Development 
Program Fund shall at all reasonable times be open to inspection by Southstreet Development, its 
agents and employees. 
 
 

ARTICLE V 
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

 
Section 5.1  Events of Default. Each of the following events shall constitute and be 

referred to in this Agreement as an "Event of Default:" 
 

(a) any failure by the Town to pay any amounts due to Southstreet Development when the 
same shall become due and payable; 

 
(b) any failure by the Town to make deposits into the Development Program Fund and/or the 

Project Cost Account as and when due; 
 
(c) any failure by the Town or Southstreet Development to observe and perform in all 

material respects any covenant, condition, agreement or provision contained herein on 
the part of the Town or Southstreet Development to be observed or performed, provided, 
however, that failure of Southstreet Development to pay Property Taxes when due shall 
not constitute an event of default hereunder; or 

 
(d) if a decree or order of a court or agency or supervisory authority having jurisdiction in the 

premises of the appointment of a conservator or receiver or liquidator of, any insolvency, 
readjustment of debt, marshalling of assets and liabilities or similar proceedings, or 
for the winding up or liquidation of the Town's affairs shall have been entered 
against the Town or the Town shall have consented to the appointment of a 
conservator or receiver or liquidator in any such proceedings of or relating to the Town 
or of or relating to all or substantially all of its property, including without limitation, 
the filing of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy by the Town or the failure by the Town to 
have a petition in banking dismissed within a period of ninety (90) consecutive days 
following its filing or in the event an order for release has been entered under the 
Bankruptcy Code with respect to the Town. 

 
Section 5.2  Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default referred to in 

Section 5.1 hereof shall have occurred and be continuing, the non-defaulting party may take any 
one or more of the following remedial steps: 
 

(a) The non-defaulting party may take whatever action at law or at equity as may appear 
necessary or desirable to collect any amount then due and thereafter to become due, to 



{R1891679.2  57398-074578 } 10 

specifically enforce the performance or observance of any obligations, agreements or 
covenants of the non-defaulting party under this Agreement and any documents, 
instruments and agreements contemplated hereby or to enforce any rights or remedies 
available hereunder; and 

 
(b) Southstreet Development shall also have the right to exercise any rights and remedies 

available to a secured party under the laws of the State of Maine. 
 

Section 5.3  Remedies Cumulative. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to 
any party is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies but each and 
every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given 
under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law, in equity or by statute. Delay or 
omission to insist upon the strict performance of any of the covenants and agreements herein set 
forth or to exercise any rights or remedies upon the occurrence of an Event of Default shall not 
impair any relinquishment for the future of the rights to insist upon and to enforce, from time to 
time and as often as may be deemed expedient, by injunction or other appropriate legal or 
equitable remedy, strict compliance by the Town with all of the covenants and conditions hereof, 
or of the rights to exercise any such rights or remedies, if such Events of Default be continued or 
repeated. 
 

Section 5.4  Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses. Notwithstanding the 
application of any other provision hereof, in the event any party should default under any of the 
provisions of this Agreement and the non-defaulting party shall require and employ attorneys or 
incur other expenses or costs for the collection of payments due or to become due or for the 
enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the part of the 
Town or Southstreet Development herein contained, the defaulting party shall, on demand thereof, 
pay to the non-defaulting party the reasonable costs and expenses so incurred by the non-
defaulting party. 
 

Section 5.5  Waiver of Sovereign Immunity. The Town hereby waives its sovereign 
immunity with respect to any actions or suits undertaken by Southstreet Development, its 
successors or assigns, arising out of, resulting from or involving any alleged default by the Town 
hereunder or failure by the Town to observe or perform any of its obligations hereunder, it 
being understood and agreed that such waiver is a material inducement to Southstreet 
Development entering into this Agreement and continuing its pursuit of the Project. 
 
 

ARTICLE VI 
EFFECTIVE DATE, TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
Section 6.1  Effective Date and Term. This Agreement shall become effective upon its 

execution and delivery by the parties hereto and shall remain in full force from the date hereof 
and shall expire upon the payment of all amounts due to Southstreet Development hereunder and 
the performance of all obligations on the part of the Town and Southstreet Development 
hereunder. 
 



{R1891679.2  57398-074578 } 11 

Section 6.2  Cancellation and Expiration of Term. At the termination or other 
expiration of this Agreement and following full payment of all amounts due and owing to 
Southstreet Development hereunder or provision for payment thereof and of all other fees and 
charges having been made in accordance with the provisions to this Agreement, the Town and 
Southstreet Development shall each execute and deliver such documents and take or cause to be 
taken such actions as may be necessary to evidence the termination of this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE OF COMPANY INTEREST 

 
Section 7.1  Consent to Collateral Pledge and/or Assignment. The Town hereby 

acknowledges that it is the intent of Southstreet Development to pledge and assign its right, title 
and interest in, to and under this Agreement as collateral for financing for the Project, although 
no obligation is hereby imposed on Southstreet Development to make such assignment or 
pledge. Recognizing this intention, the Town does hereby consent and agree to the pledge and 
assignment of any or all of Southstreet Development's right, title and interest in, to and under this 
Agreement and in, and to the payments to be made to Southstreet Development hereunder, to third 
parties as collateral or security for indebtedness or otherwise, on one or more occasions during the  
term hereof.  For this purpose, the Town agrees to execute and deliver any assignments, pledge 
agreements, consents or other confirmations required by the prospective pledge or assignee, 
including without limitation, recognition of the pledge or assignee as the holder of all right, title 
and interest herein and as the payee of amounts due and payable hereunder and any and all such 
other documentation as shall confirm to such pledge or assignee the position of such assignee or 
pledge and the irrevocable and binding nature of this Agreement and provide to the pledge or 
assignee such rights and/or remedies as it may deem necessary for the establishing, perfection 
and protection of its interests herein.  

 
Section 7.2.  Other Assignments. 
 
 a. Except to the extent provided in section 7.1, Southstreet Development 

shall not have the right to transfer or assign all or any portion of its rights in, to and under this 
Agreement, without the consent of the Town, which consent may be withheld at the sole 
discretion of the Town. 

 
 b. Prior to giving consent to any proposed assignment, the Town must 

receive documentation in form and substance satisfactory to it, that the proposed assignee accepts 
and agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Section 8.1  Successors. The covenants, stipulations, promises and agreements set forth 

herein shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective successors and assigns of the parties 
hereto. 



{R1891679.2  57398-074578 } 12 

 
Section 8.2  Parties in Interest.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, nothing in 

this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person, firm or corporation, 
other than the Town and Southstreet Development any right, remedy or claim; it being intended 
that this Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Town and Southstreet 
Development and their respective successors and assigns.   
 

Section 8.3  Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement 
shall, for any reason, be held to be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not 
affect any other provision of this Agreement and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced 
as if such illegal or invalid provision had not been contained herein. 
 

Section 8.4  No Personal Liability of Officials of the Town. No covenant, stipulation, 
obligation or agreement of the Town contained herein shall be deemed to be a covenant, 
stipulation or obligation of any present or future elected or appointed official, officer, agent, 
servant or employee of the Town in his or her individual capacity and neither the members 
of the Town Council of the Town nor any official, officer, employee or agent of the Town 
shall be liable personally with respect to this Agreement or be subject to any personal 
liability or accountability by reason hereof. 
 

Section 8.5  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which, when so executed and delivered, shall be an original, but such 
counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same Agreement. 
 

Section 8.6  Governing Law. The laws of the State of Maine shall govern the construction 
and enforcement of this Agreement. 
 

Section 8.7  Notices. All notices, certificates, requests, requisitions or other 
communications by the Town or Southstreet Development pursuant to this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall he sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when mailed by first class 
mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 
 

If to the Town: 
 

Town Manager 
Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine  04444 

  
If to Southstreet Development: 

 
Claustin “Chuck” Lawrence, Managing Member 
Southstreet Development, LLC 
59 Kidder Hill Road 
Holden, Maine 04429 

 



{R1891679.2  57398-074578 } 13 

Any of the parties may, by notice given to the other, designate any further or different addresses 
to which subsequent notices, certificates, requests or other communications shall be sent 
hereunder. 
 

Section 8.8  Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only with the concurring 
written consent of the parties hereto. 
 

Section 8.9  Net Agreement. This Agreement shall be deemed and construed to be a "net 
agreement," and the Town shall pay absolutely net during the term hereof all payments required 
hereunder, free of any deductions, and without abatement, deductions or setoffs. 
 

Section 8.10  Benefit of Assignees or Pledgees. The Town agrees that this Agreement 
is executed in part to induce assignees or pledgees to provide financing for the Project and 
accordingly all covenants and agreements on the part of the Town as to the amounts payable 
hereunder are hereby declared to be for the benefit of any such assignee or pledge from time to 
time of Southstreet Development's right, title and interest herein. 
 

Section 8.11  Valuation Agreement. The Development Program makes certain 
assumptions and estimates regarding valuation, depreciation of assets, tax rates and estimated 
costs. The Town and Southstreet Development hereby covenant and agree that the 
assumptions, estimates, analysis and results set forth in the Development Program shall in no 
way (a) prejudice the rights of any party to be used, in any way, by any party in either 
presenting evidence or making argument in any dispute which may arise in connection with 
valuation of or abatement proceedings relating to Southstreet Development 's property for 
purposes of ad valorem property taxation or (b) vary the terms of this Agreement even if the 
actual results differ substantially from the estimates, assumptions or analysis. 

 
Section 8.12. Development Agreement.  The Development Program and Financial Plan 

for the District as approved by the Town shall be deemed to be part of and incorporated in this 
Agreement.  Provided however, that in the event of any conflict between this Agreement and the 
Development Program or Financial Plan, this Agreement shall control, to the extent permitted by 
law, over any such inconsistent provisions of the Development Program or Financial Plan. 
 

Section 8.13  Integration. This Agreement completely and fully supersedes all other 
prior or contemporaneous understandings or agreements, written or oral, between the Town and 
Southstreet Development relating to the specific subject matter of this Agreement and the 
transactions contemplated hereby. 

 
ARTICLE IX 
RECAPTURE 

 
 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in the event that: 
 
 (i)  Southstreet Development, during the term of this Agreement, conveys, assigns, subleases, 
transfers or otherwise disposes of the Project, other than to a direct corporate successor of Southstreet 
Development; 



{R1891679.2  57398-074578 } 14 

 
 (ii)  Southstreet Development makes any sale, transfer, conveyance or assignment of this 
Agreement or its rights hereunder that is not permitted under Article VII hereof; or 
 
  
 (iii)  Following issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, Southstreet Development, for a period 
of 180 consecutive days during the term of this Agreement, ceases to operate a retail food (small 
grocery) and gasoline sales establishment and other retail establishment within the District; 
 
then and in such events only, Southstreet Development agrees to repay to the Town all amounts paid 
to Southstreet Development by the Town pursuant to this Agreement, together with interest on the 
amounts so paid at 4% per annum computed from the date of each payment by the Town to 
Southstreet Development, computed as of the date of such conveyance, disposition or relocation. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and Southstreet Development have caused this 

Agreement to be executed in their respective names and their respective seals to be hereunto 

affixed and attested by the duly authorized officers, all as of the date first above written. 

 
WITNESS      TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
 
 
              
       By: Angus Jennings 
       Its: Town Manager 
 
 
       SOUTHSTREET DEVELOPMENT, LLC 
 
 
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
       By: Claustin “Chuck” Lawrence 
       Its: Managing Member 



Instructions to filter emails in Gmail account 

1. Click on an email from the sender you'd like to filter.

2. Above the email, click the drop-down button marked "More"

3. From the drop-down menu, click "filter messages like these"

4. In lower right, click “Create filter with this search”

D-5-a



4. Choose the option you prefer: 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



TO: Infrastructure Committee 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  February 23, 2018 

RE: Recommended FY18 Sewer Budget Amendments 

As you know, the approved FY18 Sewer Budget (attached) authorized expenses that 
were $73,512 less than projected FY18 revenues.  

Budgeted 
Sewer expenses: $1,059,611 
Sewer revenues:  $1,133,122 

At its June 26, 2017 meeting, shortly after adoption of the Budget, the Committee 
discussed these funds as potentially being made available toward the Grist Mill Bridge 
costs. Since that time, new sewer financial expenses have become clear. 

In order to authorize FY18 expenditures greater than the approved expense budget, I 
recommend that the Infrastructure Committee refer to the Finance Committee a 
recommendation for Council approval of a FY18 Budget Amendment to:  

Increase budgeted expenses by $73,500 to authorize expenditure of revenues 
projected in FY18 but not included in expense budget, for the purpose of 
supporting engineering services for sewer capital projects, support for creating a 
sewer Fiscal Sustainability Plan and/or Asset Management Plan, and dedication 
of funds toward a sewer reserve 

(For further detail on why I am recommending a Fiscal Sustainability Plan, see Item 3.c 
in this meeting packet). 

In addition to the FY18 Sewer Net Operating Income projected at the time of budget 
adoption in June 2017, additional revenues are now projected in FY18 as a result of 
sewer connection fees expected to be received in FY18 but that were not included in 
the approved revenue budget.  

In order to authorize expenditure of those funds in FY18, I recommend that the 
Infrastructure Committee refer to the Finance Committee a recommendation for Council 
approval of a FY18 Budget Amendment to:  

Increase budgeted revenues in the 60-79 revenue line to reflect anticipated 
collection of $53,305 in unbudgeted sewer connection fees; and to  

Town of Hampden
106 Western Avenue
Hampden, Maine 04444

Phone: (207) 862-3034
Fax:   (207) 862-5067
Email:
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov
 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-b,c



Increase budgeted expenses by $53,305 to authorize expenditure of revenues 
projected to be generated in FY18 but not included in approved expense budget, 
for the purpose of supporting mitigation of anticipated Fiberight/Coastal flow 
impacts on existing infrastructure, and engineering services for other sewer 
projects 

The plan is to utilize some of the funds to rectify a manhole where the Fiberight/Coastal 
system ultimately ties to the Town sewer interceptor on Main Road North:  

With the introduction of a significant sized force main, the manhole will need some 
revisions to accept the fast moving flow to prevent a hydraulic vortex in the manhole 
thus potentially causing a sewer overflow.  

In April 2016 Director Currier identified this issue and recommended that the angle be 
reduced prior the entering the interceptor. Currently, the sewer main exits the manhole 
on the interceptor up above the shelf and would essentially end up shooting directly 
across to hit the wall on the other side of the manhole before dropping down on the 
reduced opening to the interceptor. He suggested a dog house manhole on the 
downstream side of the existing and another manhole installed on the main to ease the 
angle. 

Although we've been aware of this issue for some time we do not have budgeted funds 
to fix the problem. The recommended budget amendment will allow the connection fee 
revenues to make this related improvement. 



Approved FY18 Sewer Budget

Town of Hampden
June 19, 2017

Approved FY18 Sewer Budget, Town of Hampden

Incurred Incurred Budget YTD Percent Budget Change Budget Notes
FY15 FY16 FY17 FY17 FY18 FY17 to FY18 FY18

thru 6/1/17 91.5% of year June 19, 2017

Sewer Expense Budget
60 - SEWER

 10 - FUND 2
        01 - COMPENSATION

            05 - WAGES $60,000 $60,000 $60,000 60,000$     100% $60,000 $0
Appropriation for contribution to public works/admin 

salary offset.
        10 - SUPPLIES
            01 - SUPPLIES/OFFICE $5 $0 $0 $0 $0

            05 - POSTAGE/SHIPPING $6,389 $7,370 $6,000 $5,640 94% $8,000 $2,000 Cost of sewer billing printing & postage 4 times per year.

            20 - SUPPLIES/MATERIALS $6,752 $5,849 $10,000 10,769$   108% $3,490 ($6,510)

Pump station or line repair supplies: 6 sewer manhole 

castings; bricks, mortar, etc.; riser rings. (Removes cost of 

meter readings, budgeted elsewhere).

            99 - MISC. $0 $0 $2,400 3,835$   160% $3,320 $920

Jet truck nozzles ($1,500); Dye testing packets ($110); Tiger 

tales for jet truck ($110); grade stakes ($150); spoon to 

clean inverts ($450); Trio software ($1,000).
        15 - UTILITIES

            05 - ELECTRICITY $33,811 $37,055 $36,000 31,836$   88% $30,400 ($5,600)

Electric charges for pump stations. Includes new pump 

station for MRC, partial year. Reduced per Maine Power 

Options estimate.

            10 - FUEL $7,602 $8,864 $7,000 217$   3% $3,000 ($4,000)
Fuel costs for pump stations. (FY17 included cost of meter 

readings).
        20 - MAINTENANCE/REPAIRS

            53 - Repair $0 $21,629 $52,000 -$  0% $5,500 ($46,500)

Repair costs for pump stations and sewer lines. Includes 

manhole repair on Dewey St ($500) and misc. pump station 

upgrades ($5k).
        30 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

            02 - PROF SVCS/METER READINGS -$   $8,000 $8,000 Expense unchanged. Proposed here instead of 60-10-10-20.

            37 - PROF SVCS/LICENSE FEES $0 1,532$   $7,720 $7,720

License fees to State Treasurer ($475., removed from 60-10-

10-20). Trio service ($750., paid in FY17 from 60-10-10-99).

$2,700 to Bangor for Industrial Pretreatment Program

Admin fee (paid out of 60-10-60-04 in FY17); Annual report

fee ($180); Trio annual software costs ($1,135); Annual rent 

to Maine Central Railroad, due September ($2,480).

            40 - LIENS/TRANSFERS $3,972 $8,961 $5,600 3,641$   65% $5,600 $0 Cost of lien placement and discharge for sewer liens. 

            80 - TRAINING / TRAVEL $2,800 $2,800
New sewer employee training incl. collection system 

certification course.
        60 - SEWER EXPENSES

            02 - TREATMENT SERVICE CHARGE 249,993.84$   $128,762 $262,494 108,035$       41% $163,010 ($99,484)
Projected sewer treatment charges by City of Bangor. Prior 

three years' monthly cost average x 12.

www.hampdenmaine.gov/budget

www.hampdenmaine.gov/sewer 1 of 3



Approved FY18 Sewer Budget

Town of Hampden
June 19, 2017

Approved FY18 Sewer Budget, Town of Hampden

Incurred Incurred Budget YTD Percent Budget Change Budget Notes
FY15 FY16 FY17 FY17 FY18 FY17 to FY18 FY18

thru 6/1/17 91.5% of year June 19, 2017

            04 - PUMP STATION MAINT. 48,012.52$     $64,450 $43,878 55,648$   127% $59,003 $15,125

Cost of contracted pump station maintenance services by 

Bangor. Based on avg. invoice prior 12 months. Increased 

by one pump station, 1/4 year, for new pump station 

(MRC).

            10 - O&M CONTINGENCY $2,509 $5,000 0% $5,000 $0
Small projects that are above and beyond the routine 

repair costs. TBD based on CIP.

            16 - PRINC/INT FMHA $371,109 $380,193 $381,465 394,980$       104% $458,969 $75,833
Total debt service includes all six financing obligations 

(below).

1997 State Revolving Loan Fund $96,217 Bond will be paid off in FY18.

2009 1A Sewer Project $103,669 Bond will be paid off in FY26.
2014 1A Sewer & Pump Station $68,594 Bond will be paid off in FY35.

2006 Sewer Bond $108,526 Bond will be paid off in FY30.

2017 The First (overdue bills) $40,543 Loan will be paid off in FY24.

2017 Bangor WWTP $41,420 Loan will be paid off in FY24.

            19 - INTERFUND (TO GF) $0 $100,000 100,000$       100% $100,000
Second year of multi-year payback. (Current amount owed: 

$801,570; projected year-end FY17, $651,570).

            22 - SPECIAL PROJ $0 $0 $15,500 16,372$   106% $135,000 $119,500

Easement clearing ($20k); CCTV for defect investigation 

($60k); Seal CSO tank joints ($30k); Flushing/Cleaning ($5k); 

GIS Mapping ($5,000); Engineering Svcs ($20k).

            24 - SEWER FLUSHER REPAIRS $0 $0 $0 $0
            26 - SEWER LEGAL & BOND COUNSEL $0 $0 4,873$   $800 $800 FY17 costs paid from 60-10-30-40.

$787,647 $725,643 $987,337 $797,377 81% $1,059,611 $72,273

www.hampdenmaine.gov/budget

www.hampdenmaine.gov/sewer 2 of 3



Approved FY18 Sewer Budget

Town of Hampden
June 19, 2017

Approved FY18 Sewer Budget, Town of Hampden

Incurred Incurred Budget YTD Percent Budget Change Budget Notes
FY15 FY16 FY17 FY17 FY18 FY17 to FY18 FY18

thru 6/1/17 91.5% of year June 19, 2017

Sewer Revenue Budget
60 - SEWER

 01 - SEWER BILLS $546,133 $542,518 $943,845 $941,240 99.7% $1,124,086 $180,241
Projection based on sewer rates approved 5/15/17 ($11.60 

per 100 CF) to take effect 6/15/17.

 03 - INTEREST ON SEWER BILLS $1,924 $1,784 $1,735 $2,340 135% $2,400 $665
 05 - INTEREST/COSTS ON SEWER LIENS $9,697 $8,832 $9,050 $5,465 60% $7,219 ($1,831)
 08 - ABATEMENTS ($14,003) ($383) $0 ($4,377) ($4,500) ($4,500)
 23 - INTEREST EARNED $1,234 $87 $1,230 $586 48% $781 ($449)
 24 - CONSTRUCTION INTEREST $541 $210 $0 $5 $5
 60 - SEWER - DEBIT CARD $4 ($122) $0 ($287) ($348) ($348)
 79 - MISC SEWER INCOME $0 $64 $0 $1,369 $0 $0 Potential grant proceeds (not budgeted).
 TBD - INDUSTRIAL USER SURCHARGE $0 $3,479 $3,479 Supplemental charge to Fiberight (1/4 year).

Final Totals $545,530 $552,989 $955,860 $946,336 99.0% $1,133,122 $177,262

Prior Surplus / (Deficit) ($242,117) ($172,654)

Projected Surplus / (Deficit) ($31,477)

Projected Surplus / (Deficit) $73,512

www.hampdenmaine.gov/budget

www.hampdenmaine.gov/sewer 3 of 3



D-5-d





D-5-d









D-5-e































KLGA - Relations with School Resource Officer 
and Law Enforcement Authorities

A cooperative relationship with law enforcement authorities is desirable for the protection of
students and staff and in maintaining a safe school environment.

To that end, the school district endorses the School Resource Officer (SRO) program. The
School Resource Officer is first and foremost a police officer but with specialized training, a
unique skill set, knowledge base and background. The School Resource Officer works in
tandem with the school administrators and staff who retain the primary responsibility for
maintaining the proper order in schools. The school resource officer shall:

1. serve as a resource to administrators, students and teachers;
2. provide support and assistance to school personnel to maintain a safe and constructive
learning environment; and
3. serve as a liaison between the school and the department of public safety.

The School Resource Officer is considered to be a school official with legitimate educational
interests in reviewing educational records in order to perform professional responsibilities. The
Superintendent of Schools and administrators retain the authority to deny access to students
and or student records for non-school related investigations.

The Superintendent of Schools, in consultation with the public safety department, is
responsible for the development of regulations necessary to implement this policy.

Cross reference: EBCA - Crisis Response Plan
JICIA - Weapons, Violence and School Safety
JRA- Student Education Records
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

Adopted: April 16, 2008

D-5-f



KLGA-R

Relations with School Resource Officer and Law Enforcement Authorities 

Goals and Objectives: 
  
It is understood and agreed that the Hampden Police Department and RSU #22 officials 
share the following goals and objectives:   

• to increase students' knowledge of and respect for the law and the function of law 
enforcement agencies  

• to maintain and enhance a safe and orderly school environment  
• to provide a law enforcement resource to the administration, faculty, staff, students 

and parents 

Duties and Responsibilities: 

The School Resource Officer shall develop expertise in presenting various subjects to 
students and faculty and staff. 

The School Resource Office shall act as an instructor for specialized, short term programs 
at the school when invited to do so by the principal or member of the staff. 

The School Resource Officer shall serve as a resource person for educational 
presentations to classes and assemblies and shall, with prior approval, involve him/herself 
in programs of an educational nature.  Such programs may include safety, drug abuse, 
abusive relationships, good citizenship, theft prevention, liquor laws and fighting. 

Additional Duties: 

• Be a member of the school district’s Safety Committee  
• Assist with traffic control and parking on or around school property  
• Assist with monitoring student behavior during lunch  
• Develop plans and strategies to promote a positive relationship with students  
• Attend all faculty meetings unless excused by the principal  
• Enforce federal, state and local criminal laws and ordinances and assist school 

officials 
• When requested by the principal, investigate criminal activity committed on or 

adjacent to school property  



KLGA-R

• When requested by the principal or a designee or by the parents/guardians of a 
student, counsel students in special situations, such as students suspected of 
engaging in criminal misconduct 

• At the request of the principal, participate in case conferences, hearings and other 
related matters  

• At the request of the principal, interview students in the presence of the principal  
• or designee where the interview is of an investigative nature concerning a 

criminal offense which may result in the prosecution of the interviewee.  The 
parent/guardian of the interviewee will be notified and allowed to be present  

• In situations in which an unlawful act is committed, the School Resource Officer 
may take direct action to investigate, identify, detain, or lawfully arrest the person 
responsible for the act.  The principal and the parents will be notified as soon as 
possible  

• The School Resource Officer may investigate student conduct related to 
regulations and policies  

• If a search of a student, student's vehicle or other belongings is warranted, the 
decision to search will be made by the administration.  Emergency situations 
involving extreme bodily harm or serious facility damage may require the School 
Resource Officer to conduct the search without the presence of the principal or 
designee.  The principal or designee will be notified as soon as possible after the 
incident  

• The School Resource Officer shall make him/herself available for conferences 
with students, parents and faculty members in order to assist them with problems 
of law enforcement or crime prevention nature  

• The School Resource Officer shall perform all other duties assigned by the 
principal in agreement with the Town of Hampden Director of Public Safety  

• The School Resource Officer will submit a weekly summation report to the 
principal and Town of Hampden Director of Public Safety 

• The School Resource Officer will assist the principal in developing plans and 
strategies to prevent and/or minimize dangerous situations that may occur on 
campus or during school sponsored events  

School and Law Enforcement Records: 

The School Resource Officer is the "Law Enforcement Unit" for the school, authorized to 
enforce federal, state and local laws and maintain the physical security and safety of the 
schools.  

The School Resource Officer is also a school official with a legitimate educational 
interest in reviewing educational records in order to perform professional responsibilities. 
School administrators may release personally identifiable student information contained 
in student records to School Resource Officers and law enforcement authorities in 



KLGA-R

accordance with the requirements of the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy 
Act (FERPA) and other applicable laws. 

School Resource Officers: 

One School Resource Officer will be assigned to Hampden Academy.  The School 
Resource Officer will be available to Reeds Brook Middle School, Weatherbee School 
and McGraw School for emergency purposes.  The School Resource Officer may advise 
the Superintendent of Schools in other district matters. 

Scheduling:  

• The School Resource Officer shall be assigned to Hampden Academy on a full-
time basis and during those hours that school is in regular session.  He/She shall 
be on campus from 1/2 hour prior to the start of classes until one hour after 
classes are dismissed.  During their daily tour of duty, the School Resource 
Officer may be off campus performing such tasks as may be required by the 
assignments.  

• The School Resource Officer may be temporarily re-assigned by the Director of 
Public Safety during school holidays and vacations, and/or during periods of 
police emergency.  

• Assigned as practical to school activities such as prom, dances, graduation. 

School Resource Officer Dress:  

• Professional dress required of all public safety officers, including a firearm 

Transportation of Students:  

1.  The School Resource Officer shall not transport students in their vehicle except:  
 a.  When emergency circumstances exist, such as victims of crimes, or under  
 arrest 
 b.  When students are suspended and sent home from school pursuant to school  
 disciplinary actions if the student's parent or guardian has refused or is unable to  
 pick up the child within a reasonable time period and the student is disruptive/ 
 disorderly and his/her continued presence on campus is a threat to the safety and  
 welfare or other students and school personnel, as determined by the school  
 resource officer or his/her supervisor  

2.  The School Resource Officer shall notify the principal or designee before removing a 
student from campus  



KLGA-R

Supplies and Equipment: 

The School Resource Officer will be provided an office, computer and internet access, 
telephone, and other materials deemed appropriate by the principal in order to fulfill 
responsibilities in an exemplary manner. 

Employment: 

The School Resource Officer shall be an employee of the Hampden Police Department 
and shall be subject to the administration, supervision, evaluation and control of said 
department, following its policies and procedures. 

The principal shall be responsible for the supervision of the School Resource Officer 
during the school day.  The Town of Hampden Director of Public Safety will consult with 
the principal on the evaluation of the School Resource Officer.  

Qualifications for School Resource Officer:  

• Shall have two years of law enforcement experience    
• Shall possess a sufficient knowledge of the applicable federal and state laws, town 

and school district policies, and regulations 
• Shall be capable of conducting in-depth investigations  
• Shall possess even temperament and set a good example for students  
• Shall possess communication skills that would enable the officer to function 

effectively within the school environment  
• Shall commit to appropriate professional development initiatives related to School 

Resource Officer duties 

Dismissal of School Resource Officer - Replacement: 

In the event the principal of Hampden Academy believes the School Resource Officer is 
not effectively performing his/her duties and responsibilities, the principal shall 
recommend to the Superintendent of Schools that the School Resource Officer be 
removed.  The reasons shall be stated in writing.  

Within ten days of the principal’s recommendation, the Superintendent or designee shall 
advise the Town of Hampden Director of Public Safety of the principal’s 
recommendation.  If the Town of Hampden Director of Public Safety  desires, the 
Superintendent of Schools and Town of Hampden Director of Public Safety shall meet 
with the School Resource Officer to mediate or resolve the situation.  The 
Superintendent’s decision pertaining to the employment of the School Resource Officer is 
final.  



KLGA-R

The Town of Hampden Director of Public Safety may dismiss or reassign a School 
Resource Officer based upon Hampden Public Safety rules, regulations and general 
orders and when it is in the best interest of RSU #22. 

Updated:  January, 2018 



Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Town Council 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

February 28, 2018 

·b - 5- F

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax: (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

RE: Discussion of potential addition of second School Resource Officer 

In light of recent events, Councilor Sirois has asked for a discussion at next Monday's 
Council meeting regarding the potential addition of a second School Resource Officer 
(SRO) to supplement Lt. Dan Stewart's work. 

I met with Chief Rogers, then he and I met with Superintendent Lyons, Asst. 
Superintendent Nickels, and Lt. Stewart to discuss this issue earlier this week. Our 
meeting included discussion of the 2013 SRO grant that was awarded, but not accepted 
by the Council, to subsidize a second SRO for a fixed period of time. I have attached 
relevant meeting agendas, minutes and supporting materials from that era. I have also 
attached the current RSU-22 policy regarding the SRO. 

If there is a majority of Councilors who are interested in considering potential addition of 
a second SRO, RSU-22 Administration suggested that a productive next step would be 
to send representation to the next meeting of the School Board's Education Committee, 
on March 7th at 6 PM. 








































































	TC packet stuff 3-5-2018 - Coldbrook Corners TIF.pdf
	Pages from Finance & Administration Agenda & Packet
	Development Program as Presented to Public-Council (R1891674-2xAB81A)
	A. The Coldbrook Corners Project
	C. Tax Increment Financing – Hampden Economic Development Program
	A. The Development District
	B. Sources of Revenues
	C. Public Indebtedness
	HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL
	ORDER #_______

	Coldbrook Corners TIF - proposed eligible uses of funds 2-27-18
	CEA for Council Approval 030518 (R1891679-2xAB81A)

	Sewer Funding Authorization Presentation slides (1).pdf
	MDOT Rt. 1A Reconstruction
	MDOT Rt. 1A Reconstruction
	Grist Mill Bridge Replacement
	Grist Mill Bridge Replacement
	Western Avenue and Main Road North
	Western Avenue and Main Road North




